
 

Camberwell Community Council 
 
 

Tuesday 10 January 2012 
7.00 pm 

Jessie Duffett Hall, 92 - 94 Wyndham Road, London SE5 0UB 
 

Membership 
 

 

Councillor Norma Gibbes (Chair) 
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Kevin Ahern 
Councillor Peter John 
Councillor the Right Revd Emmanuel Oyewole 
Councillor Veronica Ward 
Councillor Mark Williams 
Councillor Ian Wingfield 
 

 

 
 
Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
Annie Shepperd 
Chief Executive 
Date: Friday 23 December 2011  
 

 
 

 

Order of Business 
 

 
Item 
No. 

Title Time 

 

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME  
 

 

2. APOLOGIES  
 

 

3. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS  
 

 

 Members are asked to declare any interest or dispensation and the nature 
of that interest or dispensation which they may have in any of the items 
under consideration at this meeting. 
 
 

 

Open Agenda



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Time 
 
 

4. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT  
 

 

 The chair to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent 
business being admitted to the agenda. 
 

 

5. MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 4 - 12) 
 

 

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 31 
October 2011. 
 

 

 MAIN BUSINESS 
 

 

6. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS (IF ANY)  
 

7.10 pm 

7. COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS AND PRESENTATIONS  
 

7.20 pm 

 Representatives from the following groups to give an announcement or 
short presentation. 
 

• Adult Social Care Campaign – launch of the new section of the 
adult social care web pages – signpost support  

 
• Southwark Civic Awards  
 
• Feedback on consultation, Camberwell Town Centre 
 
• Veolia Environmental Services – to talk about the opening of the 

new Waste Management Facility, Old Kent Road, closure of Manor 
Place depot and feedback on rollout services  

 

 

8. COMMUNITY SAFETY UPDATES FROM THE SAFER 
NEIGHBOURHOOD TEAMS  

 

7.55 pm 

9. PROTECT COUNCIL HOUSING, CABINET MEMBER FOR HOUSING 
MANAGEMENT  

 

8.05 pm 

10. SOUTHWARK'S BUDGET 2012/2013  
 

8.25 pm 

 Cabinet member to discuss the draft budget proposals. 
 

 

 BREAK AT 8.38 PM 
 

 

 Opportunity for residents to talk to councillors and officers. 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Time 
 
 

11. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (Pages 13 - 15) 
 

8.45 pm 

 This is an opportunity for public questions addressed to the chair. 
 
Residents or persons working in the borough may ask questions on any 
matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties. 
 
Response may be supplied in writing following the meeting.  
 

 

12. GROVE VALE FIRST AND SECOND STAGE CONTROLLED PARKING 
ZONE (CPZ) STUDY (Pages 16 - 63) 

 

8.55 pm 

 To comment on the CPZ proposals.  
 

 

13. ELEPHANT AND CASTLE SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT  
 

9.05 pm 

14. LOCAL PARKING AMENDMENTS (Pages 64 - 70) 
 

9.15 pm 

 Executive function  
 
Members to consider local parking schemes contained within the report. 
 

 

15. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 

 That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraphs 1 and 2, Access to Information 
Procedure rules of the Constitution. 
 

 

16. LEA SCHOOL GOVERNOR APPOINTMENTS  
 

 

 Executive Function  
 
Members to consider report contained in the closed agenda. 
 

 

 
Date:  Friday 23 December 2011 
 



  
INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

 
CONTACT: Beverley Olamijulo, Constitutional Officer, Tel: 020 7525 
7234 or email: beverley.olamijulo@southwark.gov.uk  
Website: www.southwark.gov.uk 

 
ACCESS TO INFORMATION 

On request, agendas and reports will be supplied to members of the 
public, except if they contain confidential or exempted information. 

 

ACCESSIBLE MEETINGS  

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  For 
further details on building access, translation and interpreting services, 
the provision of signers and other access requirements, please contact 
the Constitutional Officer. 

Disabled members of the public, who wish to attend community council 
meetings and require transport assistance in order to attend, are 
requested to contact the Constitutional Officer. The Constitutional 
Officer will try to arrange transport to and from the meeting. There will 
be no charge to the person requiring transport. Please note that it is 
necessary to contact us as far in advance as possible, and at least 
three working days before the meeting.  

 

BABYSITTING/CARERS’ ALLOWANCES 

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look 
after your children or an elderly or disabled dependant, so that you can 
attend this meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council.  
Please collect a claim form from the Constitutional Officer at the 
meeting.  

 
DEPUTATIONS 
Deputations provide the opportunity for a group of people who are 
resident or working in the borough to make a formal representation of 
their views at the meeting. Deputations have to be regarding an issue 
within the direct responsibility of the Council. For further information on 
deputations, please contact the Constitutional Officer.  
 
 

For a large print copy of this pack, 
please telephone 020 7525 7234.  
 
 

 

Agenda Annex
1



Camberwell Community Council

Language Needs
If you would like information on the Community Councils translated into your
language please telephone 020 7525 7385 or visit the officers at 160 Tooley
Street, London SE1 2TZ

Spanish:

Necesidades de Idioma
Si usted desea información sobre los Municipios de la Comunidad traducida a
su idioma por favor llame al 020 7525 7385 o visite a los oficiales de 160 Tooley
Street, Londres SE1 2TZ

French:

Besoins de Langue
Si vous désirez obtenir des renseignements sur les Community Councils traduits
dans votre langue, veuillez appeler le 020 7525 7385 ou allez voir nos agents à
160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ

Bengali :

fvlvi cÖ‡qvRb

Avcwb hw` wb‡Ri fvlvq KwgDwbwU KvDwÝj m¤ú‡K© Z_¨ †c‡Z Pvb Zvn‡j 020 7525 7385 b¤̂‡i
†dvb Ki“b A_ev 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ wVKvbvq wM‡q Awdmvi‡`i mv‡_ †`Lv

Ki“b|

Yoruba:

Awon Kosemani Fun Ede
Bi o ba nfe àlàyé kíkún l’ori awon Ìgbìmò Àwùjo ti a se ayipada si ede abínibí re,

ojúlé 160 Tooley Street , London SE1 2TZ .

Turkish:

2



Igbo:

Asusu
I choo imata gwasara Council na asusu gi ikpoo ha n’okara igwe 020 7525 7385
ma obu igaa hu ndi oru ha na 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ

Krio:

Na oose language you want
If you lek for sabi all tin but Community Council na you yone language, do ya
telephone 020 7525 7385 or you kin go talk to dee officers dem na 160 Tooley
Treet, London SE1 2TZ.

Twi:

Kasaa ohohia,
se wopese wo hu nsem fa Community Councils ho a, sesa saakasa yie ko wo
kuro kasa mu. wo be tumi afre saa ahoma torofo yie 020 7525 7385 anase ko sra
inpanyinfo wo 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2Tz.

3



1 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Monday 31 October 2011 
 

 

CAMBERWELL COMMUNITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES of the Camberwell Community Council held on Monday 31 October 2011 at 
7.00 pm at Albrighton Community Centre, 37 Albrighton Road, East Dulwich Estate, 
London SE22 8AH  
 
 
PRESENT: Councillor Norma Gibbes (Chair) 

Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Kevin Ahern 
Councillor Stephen Govier 
Councillor Peter John 
Councillor the Right Revd Emmanuel Oyewole 
Councillor Veronica Ward 
Councillor Mark Williams 
Councillor Ian Wingfield 
 

OFFICER 
SUPPORT: 

Michelle Normanly, (Senior Project Manager) 
Sally Crew (Group Manager, Policy and Programmes) 
Jack Ricketts (Transport Planner)  
Abdi Mohamed Ibrahim, (Neighbourhood Coordinator) 
Grace Semakula, (Community Council Development Officer) 
Beverley Olamijulo, (Constitutional Officer) 
 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME 
 

 

 The chair welcomed councillors, members of the public and officers to the meeting. 
 

2. APOLOGIES 
 

 

 There were no apologies for absence. 
 

3. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 
 

 

 There were none. 
 

4. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT 
 

 

 There were none. 

Agenda Item 5
4



2 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Monday 31 October 2011 
 

 

5. MINUTES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

 

 RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 22 September 2011 be agreed as a correct 
record of that meeting and signed by the chair. 
 
This was subject to an amendment relating to item 11: 
 
Grove Vale first and second stage parking consultation 
 
Councillor Govier’s comments did not accurately convey what he highlighted at the 
community council meeting on 22 September 2011. He expressed concern at 
September meeting that the Grove Vale CPZ consultation was not wide enough and he 
wanted the minutes to reflect this statement. 
 
Councillor Govier’s comments were noted at this meeting and the necessary 
amendments were made to the minutes for 22 September 2011. 

 

6. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS 
 

 

 None were received. 
 

7. COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 

 

 The following presentations and announcements were made: 
 
Welcome from Albrighton Community Centre  
 
Steve Hedger welcomed everyone to the Albrighton Community Centre and spoke about 
the newly refurbished community centre which has the same footprint as the previous 
building but is significantly larger. 
 
The centre opened in April this year and offers a range of activities with more services 
being delivered in the future.  They include a Saturday kids club, holiday play schemes, a 
youth club, Chinese kick boxing, zumba classes, Irish dancing, faith groups and Ta Chi 
classes.  Also a local nursery on the estate uses the centre.  
 
Steve took questions on the income and revenue generated (£8k a month) which is used 
for the up keep of the building and facilities for the centre.    
 
Councillor Ward mentioned that she hoped the facilities would benefit the wider community 
in South Camberwell and beyond.  
 
Councillor John congratulated Steve for all his hard work at the centre.  Steve explained 
the Tenants Association would soon become a new Development Trust, as the inaugural 
meeting was due take to place by the end of year by then the Tenant Association would be 

5



3 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Monday 31 October 2011 
 

registered as a charity.   
 
Sidney Bates memorial 
 
The chair announced that a ceremony would take place on Saturday, 2 November 2011 at 
11.00am at Camberwell Green to honour a young Camberwell resident called Sidney 
Bates who died in World War II and received the Victoria Cross.  Members of his Family 
are expected to attend the service.  The chair encouraged local residents to attend. 
 
Council Assembly  
 
The chair announced the next council assembly meeting would be held at Charter School, 
Red Post Hill on Tuesday, 29 November 2011 at 7.00pm.  The theme would be Housing. 
 
Having Faith in Southwark – Part Three  
 
Councillor the Right Revd Oyewole announced the Having Faith in Southwark event which 
was a public conversation about faith premises.  This was on Thursday 10 November 
2011 at 6.30pm, Tooley Street, SE1 2TZ. For more information contact Michael Cleere, 
Community Cohesion Coordinator on 020 7525 5645 or email 
michael.cleere@southwark.gov.uk  
 
Greendale, Denmark Hill, SE22 
 
Councillor Ward announced that the proposal for the Greendale site had not been 
validated because an ecological report was required for the site.  Councillor Ward said she 
would keep people updated on progress. 
 
Cleaner Greener Safer 2012 -2013 launch 
 
The chair announced the launch of the Cleaner Greener Safer funding which is divided 
amongst all eight of the community council areas.  The amount allocated to all eight is 
£220,000.   
 
Michelle Normanly from the Cleaner Greener Safer team addressed the meeting about the 
application period for the CGS funding programme.  This was launched at an event on 29 
October 2011 at a community garden in Peckham.   
 
Michelle referred to the criteria and the types of projects that have previously been 
awarded funding and to highlight the time limit set for the funding programme.  Officers 
were available during the break to answer questions. People were also encouraged to visit 
the council’s website to down load a CGS e-form. 
 
Councillor Govier expressed concern about the delivery of CGS projects in the 
Camberwell area particularly those on open spaces (e.g. locality of Sainsbury’s 
supermarket).  He said he would like to see the process for these schemes to be much 
tighter and to deliver what was promised.    
 
Councillor John agreed with Councillor Govier’s comments and outlined that he hoped all 
CGS projects that were previously approved are dealt with in a timely fashion.  He said 
next year’s funding programme would eliminate the backlog and ensure all CGS projects 

6



4 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Monday 31 October 2011 
 

are delivered within a two year time frame. 
 
Camberwell Society  
 
Nick Holt, chair of the Camberwell Society gave a presentation at the meeting and 
explained that this was the first community council he had attended.  He also welcomed 
the launch of the Camberwell Town Centre.  
 
The Camberwell Society is a registered society with 600 members and new members are 
welcomed to widen the diversity.   
 
The role of the Camberwell Society is to ensure a high standard of development is met in 
the area.  The Society raises money for local events and charities, and lobbies on issues 
like transport, planning, licensing, open spaces and public realm in general.  They also join 
other local groups to help fund local facilities. 
 
Nick outlined the objectives of the Camberwell Society, they include the following: 
 
• Development and improvements in Camberwell focussing on major sites and planning 

applications particularly those with a change of use. 
 
• Looking at proposals for a new library in Camberwell. 
 
• Good development and improvement of public realm, refuse collection, clutter on 

pavements, (Camberwell Church Street), advertising banners, buildings along shops 
are look dilapidated, arrange for them to be spruced up if possible. 

 
• Extension of the bike hire scheme to Camberwell and possibly in the long term have a 

tube station in the south of Borough. 
 
In response to questions, about Camberwell’s old railway station Nick agreed that this 
needs to be looked at.   
 
Also pavements in the area should be improved to better accommodate scooters and push 
chairs.  The old railway station closed in 1915 and for the 100th year anniversary they want 
to look at the idea of having a completely new station on that site.  The Society tried this 
with the station behind the old bingo hall unfortunately this was unsuccessful.  Councillor 
Wingfield mentioned that he had pushed for a proposal to extend the tube network to the 
Camberwell area.  
 
Camberwell Youth provision 
 
Edward James, Camberwell Youth Officer gave an overview of youth provision and about 
what his role entailed. At the moment the work involved him being on duty six days a week 
in the Camberwell area.  The target groups are mainly young people, pregnant teenage 
girls, lesbian and gay people and gang members out on many of the local estates.  His 
role involves working with the youth community council and representing the views of 
young people.  Edward said young people in Camberwell took part in a survey and gave 
their views provided on the Camberwell regeneration scheme. 
 
A young person from the audience explained how much he valued Edward’s contribution 

7



5 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Monday 31 October 2011 
 

to the area.  He said before he would stay at home and play video games and now 
Edward has changed his life for the better. 
 
The chair thanked Edward for his presentation and the young people for their  attendance 
and contribution to  the meeting.  
 
SE5 Forum 
 
Jeremy Leech thanked the community council for the opportunity he had to speak at the 
meeting.  He explained the Forum had been was set up a few years ago to be a voice, 
support local businesses and encourage new business to the area. 
 
The Forum has over 2000 members and their own website, representatives have 
produced a vision for Camberwell.   
 
The purpose of this vision would be to bring ideas and initiatives together which would be 
set for years to come.  The document referred to creating jobs, cross border working and 
promoting small independent businesses in the local area. 
 
The Forum recognises the proposals for the Camberwell Town Centre and proposed that 
there be:  
 

• Better signage from Denmark Hill to the rest of Camberwell. 
 
• Street lighting should be at a lower height. 
   
• Making Camberwell Town Centre a place where people would visit. 
 
• To ensure the area remains prosperous and money would be spent to improve 

the area, particularly as Camberwell had the second highest number of 
causalities involving road accidents. 

 
• The development of more business ‘job creation’. 

 
• Short term parking particularly around Butterfly Walk, so that it would be better 

utilised.  
 
• Suggest the appointment of a Camberwell Town Centre Manager and 

appointment of a officer ‘Economic Development Officer’. Jeremy thought it 
would be a good idea for Camberwell and Peckham to come together to 
formulate these proposals. 

 
Everyone in the audience agreed with these proposals, which they felt could be achieved 
with the support of local councillors. 
 
Jeremy responded to questions concerning the increased number of chicken and fast food 
outlets in the area. Councillor John agreed this should be looked at in the borough.  
Waltham Forest Council successfully addressed this issue by limiting the number of fast 
food outlets in their area. 
 

8



6 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Monday 31 October 2011 
 

A question was asked about the number of accidents with peddle bikes and whether 
funding could be made available to have road side facilities for bikes.  Councillor John 
mentioned that there would be a cycle plan for Southwark which would form part of the 
borough’s transport scheme.   
 
Councillor Govier stated that Camberwell needed to be more bike friendly further steps 
should be taken to reduce the number of takeaways.  The council should also be more 
vigorous particularly when people are seeking to change the use of a premises.  A 
resident said there should be more electrical shops and fewer pound shops so the area 
reverts to what it was before.  
 
SRUG (Southwark Railway Users Group)  
 
Eileen Conn spoke about the users group at the meeting.  The main issues were 
highlighted during the powerpoint presentation which was basically to influence what 
should be produced when providing maps and railway information to the general public or 
any information relating to general rail services. 
 
Eileen urged people to get involved so their views are known on what was being decided 
at local level and nationally.  More users were encouraged to join the group. 
 
 The chair thanked the representatives for their presentations. 
 

8. THE LAUNCH OF THE CAMBERWELL TOWN CENTRE 
CONSULTATION 

 

 

 Sally Crew from the planning policy team presented this item and explained that this was 
the initial consultation phase concerning plans for a Camberwell Town centre. 
 
A short video was shown in which a number of local residents spoke about what they liked 
about Camberwell. 
 
The comments were good shops, restaurants, the area has a ‘buzz’ feel, very arty, 
generally you could walk anywhere people knew each other. 
 
Another question was if you could change one thing about Camberwell what would it be?  
 
These were some of the responses from those that took part: 
 

• Local park 
• Creating more bike lanes 
• More and improved pedestrian crossings 
• More facilities and activities for young people  
• People being more responsible for their street litter     . 

 
The video captured people’s ideas and their aspirations, Sally explained that she was 
personally excited about this project as she had worked on the scheme for a number of 
years. Also as this project involved a £7 million budget there would be a long process of 
discussion and the first stage of the consultation would run up until the end of 2011 and 
2012. 

9



7 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Monday 31 October 2011 
 

 
Stages of the consultation  
 
• The transport model and the various options would be in June or July 2012. 
 
• In late 2012, the selected options would be put together and the scheme delivered in 

2014. 
 
People were encouraged to get in contact with officers in the planning and policy team 
about information on the public consultation events. 
 
Sally Crew announced that as part of the consultation there would be a forthcoming event 
at the St Giles Centre.  She asked people to indicate on the maps provided to say what 
they would like to see in Camberwell.   
 
During this part of the meeting, Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle hosted a quiz which involved a 
range of questions about famous people and local history of the Camberwell area. 
 
Officers agreed to bring back the results of the consultation at the community council 
meeting in January 2012. 
 
The chair thanked officers and those who participated in this part of the meeting. 
 

9. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 
 

 

 The following questions were raised at the meeting: 
 
Q1: 7 public questions were raised at the last meeting on 22 September 2011, 3 
 questions remained unanswered.  When will these be addressed? 
 
A1:  The chair said the would ensure a response to the 3 remaining questions are 
 provided at the next meeting.   The clerk agreed contact officers about this. 
 
Q2: Is it true that Tesco are planning to open a store on the site of the Dulwich 
 Garden Centre? if so, what research was done prior to planning permission 
 being given on the likely effects on existing shops in Grove Vale? 
 
A2:  A written response from the planning team would be given at the next  meeting. 
 

10. COMMUNITY COUNCIL HIGHWAYS CAPITAL INVESTMENT 2012 - 
2013 

 

 

 Executive Function  
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the funding for the proposed schemes (as set out below) in the Camberwell 
Community Council area detailed in Appendix A of the report be agreed: 

 

10



8 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Monday 31 October 2011 
 

Grosvenor Terrace  Carriageway  £25,000 
 

Linell Road  Carriageway  £22,400 
 

Woodfarrs Footway  £46,750 
 

Crossthwaite 
Avenue 
 

Carriageway £24,600 

 
 

11. CLEANER GREENER, SAFER FUNDING PROGRAMME 
 

 

 Executive Function 
 
RESOLVED: 

 
1. That Camberwell Community Council noted the financial savings and deficits for 

relevant projects which were set out in the report. 
   
2. That the re-allocation outlined be approved: 

 
The Jessie Duffett Hall £13,650 

 
Camberwell Green memorial 
bench  
 

 
£3,000 

 
 

12. LOCAL PARKING AMENDMENTS AND CAR CLUB EXPANSION 
 

 

 Executive Function 
 
RESOLVED: 

 
1. That the local parking amendments, detailed in the report and appendices, be 

approved for implementation subject to the outcome of any necessary statutory 
procedures: 

 
• Flodden Road – remove existing permit holders only bay and install zone 

hours waiting restrictions  
 
• Grace’s Mews – relocate proposed permit holders only from northeast side 

to southwest side. 
 
2. That the shortlist as set out in the report for potential future car club locations be 

approved. 
 
3. That the two shortlisted locations recommended in Avondale Rise and Rainbow 

11



9 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Monday 31 October 2011 
 

Street be implemented during 2012 -2013 subject to consultation and the 
completion of any necessary statutory procedures. 

 
4. That the four shortlisted locations recommended in Councillor Street, Daneville 

Road, Gairloch Road and Grove Lane be implemented during 2012 -2013 which 
would be subject to consultation and the completion of any necessary statutory 
procedures. 

 

13. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

 

 RESOLVED: 
 

That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 1 and 2, Access to Information Procedure rules of the Constitution. 

 

14. LEA SCHOOL GOVERNORS APPOINTMENTS 
 

 

 Executive Function  
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the following applicants be re-appointed to John Ruskin Primary School: 
 

• Ms Lucy O’Sullivan 
• Mr William Rowe 

 
2. That Mr Mark Rivers be appointed to Comber Grove Primary School. 
 
3. That Ms Therese Reinheimer-Jones be appointed to Dog Kennel Hill Primary 

School. 
 
4. That Mr Chris Sims be appointed to Oliver Goldsmith Primary School. 

 

 The meeting ended at 9.30 pm. 
 
 CHAIR:  
 
 
 DATED:  
 
 

 

12



Feedback about issues raised at previous community council meetings 
 

Question Response 
 

Questions raised at the meeting on 22 September 
2011  
 
Question 1: The council's Hate Crime Strategy I 
understand has not gone through please could the 
council explain why? (Dax Ashworth) 
 

The council’s forward plan indicates that the Hate Crime 
Strategy was considered at the Cabinet meeting on 13 
December 2011.   
 
Cabinet decision:   
 
RESOLVED: 
 
1. That the hate crime strategy for Southwark 2011- 2015, 

as set out in Appendix 1 to the report, be approved. 
 
2. That the five overarching strategic aims as outlined 

within the strategy and the supporting delivery plan be 
approved.  

 
The strategic aims are: 

• Re-energise interest in tackling hate crime 
 
• Promote the support services available 
 
• Encourage communities to work together to 

tackle the issue 
 
• Encourage people to approach services to seek 

support and report hate crime, and 
 
• To take a robust approach to tackle those who 

are repeat perpetrators of hate crime. 
 
3. That it be noted “Stop Hate UK”, a charity that provides 

independent and confidential support to victims of hate 
crime, has been jointly commissioned between the 
London Borough of Southwark and the Metropolitan 
Police Services to run a short pilot in 2011/12. 

 
Question 2: Addressed to Camberwell Green ward 
councillors:  The last administration ensured the 
road sweepers were out in force keeping our streets 
clean.  This has not happened with the present 
administration.  Please could you look in to this? 
(Nick Mellish) 
 

As a direct consequence of the government's cuts in public 
spending in early 2011 and in line with every other local 
authority in the country Southwark was required to review 
every aspect of the services it delivers to the community as 
a whole, street cleansing was no exception. As part of this 
review process in April 2011 the street cleansing budget 
was reduced by almost one million pounds which resulted in 
the loss of 48 street cleaners posts and represented a 20% 
reduction in the total street cleansing workforce, this has 
invariably led to a reduced presence of street cleansing 
operatives on the borough's streets however the current 
street cleaning service still provides the following: 
 
• Permanent daily litter picking/cleaning presence on all 

major retail areas from the hours of 06:00 to 18:00. 
• Alternate day litter picking/cleaning of all other 

roads/streets. 
• Daily mechanical sweeping of all major retail areas. 
• Full manual sweeping of all other roads/streets every 4 

weeks. 

Agenda Item 11
13



 
 

Question 4: Recycling collection: It has been noted 
that there has been a successful increase with 
people recycling items based on weekly collections 
(why)? Does the council propose to make recycling 
collections on a fortnightly basis? (Ian McGeough) 
 

The blue wheeled bins (or additional stackable blue boxes 
where appropriate) provide residents with at least double the 
current capacity for recycling, with little or no change to the 
footprint of containers required.  This increased capacity 
allows us to run a more efficient fortnightly recycling 
service.  With recycling being even easier now that there is 
no requirement to separate out materials, we are confident 
that the changes to the recycling service will have a positive 
impact on the amount people recycle.   
 
 
 

Question 5: Why can't individual requirements be 
canvassed before bins are allocated? 
(Ian McGeough) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Question raised at meeting on 31 October 2011 
 
Is it true that Tesco are planning to open a store on 
the site of the Dulwich Garden Centre? If so, what 
research was done prior to planning permission 
being given on the likely effects on existing shops in 
Grove Vale?  (Yvonne Lewis) 
 
 

The new configuration of recycling and refuse services is 
being rolled out to 45,000 street-based properties. Because 
we delivered containers and information to so many 
properties, it wasn’t feasible to deliver the various possible 
configurations of receptacles to each property ‘to order’. 
However, over the summer months we surveyed all 
properties on a street by street basis, in order to determine 
the most appropriate receptacles for each street. We are 
also of course happy to work with residents to exchange 
containers they have received where requested. 

 
 
 
In July 2011, the Planning Committee resolved to grant 
planning permission for the redevelopment of 20-22 Grove 
Vale, to provide a new library, one retail units, and 20 flats.  
The new retail unit replaces the existing Garden Centre, 
which is also classified as a 'Class A1' retail use. 
 
The new shop unit would have an area of 293 sqm.  Whilst 
the planning permission, through the Use Class Order, can 
control the general use of the unit, requiring it to be 
occupied only by a retail use, it cannot control who the 
occupier would actually be.  No information was submitted 
with the application about the likely end user.  We are aware 
of the local speculation about a Tesco store, but this is not 
something which formed part of the application, and is in 
any case not something which the Council, as Planning 
Authority, would have any ability to control. 
 
The Planning Committee's resolution was subject to the 
applicant entering into a legal agreement with the Council to 
secure various community benefits.  This agreement has not 
yet been signed, and so the permission has not been 
issued.  Once it is, the developer would have 3 years within 
which to implement the permission.  During this period, they 
would seek tenants for the unit, but provided that the user 
fell within the A1 use class (which Tesco would do) the 
Council would have no involvement in that decision. 

 

14



 
Camberwell Community Council 

Tuesday 10 January 2012 
 

Public Question form 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Please give this to Beverley Olamijulo, Constitutional Officer, or Grace 
Semakula, Community Council Development Officer 
 

 
Your name: 
 
 
Your mailing address: 
 
 
What is your question? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

15



 

 
 
 

 

  

 
Item No.  

12 
 
 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
10 January 2012 

Meeting Name: 
Camberwell Community Council 
 

Report title: 
 

Grove Vale Controlled Parking Zone 1st and 2nd 
stage report 
 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 
 

East Dulwich Ward and South Camberwell Ward 

From: 
 

Head of Public Realm 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Community Council:  
 
1. Note that this report is presented to the community council for consultation 

purposes only and that the final decision is delegated to the Cabinet Member for 
Environment, Transport and Recycling. 

2. Consider and note the results of the supporting Grove Vale 1st and 2nd stage 
Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) consultation report (the ‘consultation report’). 

3. Consider the options contained within consultation report which are summarised 
below: 

 
• Option 1. Not to proceed with the installation of a CPZ in any of the Grove 

Vale study area. 
 

• Option 2. Not to proceed with the installation of a CPZ in any of the Grove 
Vale study area but carry out minor changes. 

 
• Option 3. Introduce a one hour CPZ on an experimental basis in Derwent 

Grove only. 
 

• Option 4. Introduce a one hour CPZ on an experimental basis in the 
following streets only: Derwent Grove, Elsie Road, Jarvis Road, Melbourne 
Grove, Oxonian Street, Tintagel Crescent and Zenoria Street. 

 
• Option 5. Introduce a one hour CPZ on an experimental basis in the 

following streets only: Derwent Grove, Elsie Road and Tintagel Crescent. 
 
4. Give comment to the options above (or make alternative suggestion) and note that 

any comments or suggestions made will be included within the final report to the 
Cabinet Member for Environment, Transport and Recycling scheduled for February 
2012. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
5. Approval to consult residents on the principal and detail of a possible CPZ in the 

Grove Vale area was given by Dulwich Community Council on 15 September 2011 
and by Camberwell Community Council on 22 September 2011. 

Agenda Item 12
16



 

 
 
 

 

  

 

6. Informal public consultation took place with all residents and businesses within the 
consultation area from 14 October 2011 until 11 November 2011. 

7. Full detail of the consultation strategy, results, options and conclusions can be 
found in the consultation report. 

 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  

8. In accordance with Part 3H paragraph 20 and 22 of the council’s constitution 
community councils are to be consulted on strategic matters such as the 
introduction of a CPZ. In practise this is carried out before and after the public 
consultation. 

9. In accordance with Part 3D paragraph 22 of the council’s constitution the decision 
to implement a new CPZ lies with the individual Cabinet Member for Environment, 
Transport and Recycling. 

10. The community council is now being given the opportunity to make final 
representations to the options that have arisen following public consultation 
detailed in the consultation report.  

 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
11. The recommendations contained within this report are consistent with the polices 

of the Parking and Enforcement Plan (PEP) and the Transport Plan 2011, 
particularly: 

 
Policy 1.1 – pursue overall traffic reduction 

• Parking, by definition, occurs at the end of a vehicle trip. By 
managing or limiting the provision of parking to certain users or 
classes of vehicle, CPZs contribute to the reduction of traffic. This is 
predominantly achieved by preventing commuter or long-stay 
parking and associated traffic. 

Policy 2.3 – promote and encourage sustainable travel choices in the borough 

• By managing the supply of parking, CPZs are significant in releasing 
suppressed demand for sustainable modes, such as walking, 
cycling and public 

Policy 4.2 – create places that people can enjoy 

• Parking controls assist in reducing the dominance of on-street 
parking. They ensure that where it is permitted it is prioritised fairly 
and takes place in appropriate places. 

• CPZs reflect the fact that only 50% of households in Southwark 
have access to a car and that balance should be made in the 
allocation of road space  

Policy 8.1 – seek to reduce overall levels of private motor vehicle traffic on our 
       streets 

• CPZs contribute to the reduction in private motor vehicle traffic by 
preventing commuter parking.  If parking spaces are not available at 
the destination then an alternative (more sustainable) method of 
transport is likely to be chosen to carry out that trip. 

17



 

 
 
 

 

  

 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT STATEMENT 
 
12. The implementation and operation of the CPZ contributes to an improved 

environment through the elimination of on-street commuter parking and the 
associated reduction of local and borough-wide traffic levels. 

 
13. The consultation leaflet met communication guidance with a languages page with 

advice of how to access the council’s translation services.  Large format leaflets 
were available for those with visual impairment. 

14. The implementation of a CPZ may benefit disabled motorists by reducing parking 
demand in locations that currently allow unrestricted parking. 

15. The council will continue to provide its normal service for the provision of ‘origin’ 
disabled bays outside residents homes who meet the relevant criteria. 

16. The implementation of a CPZ will provide greater protection of parking spaces to 
all residents and their visitors living within the zone. This prioritisation of space 
provides a benefit to all resident permit holders.  

17. The overall implementation of a CPZ may disbenefit those persons who currently 
drive to the area who will now be required to pay for parking during the operational 
hours of pay and display or be excluded if staying longer than the permitted 
maximum stay at a pay and display bay. 

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

18. This report is for the purposes of consultation only and there are no resource 
implications associated with it. 

19. It is, however, noted that this projected is funded by an allocation from Transport 
for London for this purpose. 

 
CONSULTATION 
 
20. The two community councils were consulted prior to commencement of the study, 

as detailed in paragraph 5. 

21. Informal public consultation was carried out in October and November 2011, as 
detailed in paragraph 6. 

22. This report provides a opportunity for final comment to be made by the community 
council prior to a key decision scheduled to be taken by the Cabinet Member for 
Environment, Transport and Recycling in February 2012. 

23. Any areas that are approved for CPZ implementation will be subject statutory 
consultation required in the making of any permanent Traffic Management Orders.   

 
 

18



 

 
 
 

 

  

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 
Grove Vale 1st and 2nd Stage 
Controlled Parking Zone consultation 
report 

Southwark Council 
Environment 
Public Realm 
Network Development 
160 Tooley Street 
London 
SE1 2QH  

 

Tim Walker 
 
(020 7525 2021) 

Transport Plan 2011 Southwark Council 
Environment 
Public Realm 
Network Development 
160 Tooley Street 
London 
SE1 2QH 

Online: 
http://www.southwark.gov.
uk/info/200107/transport_p
olicy/1947/southwark_trans
port_plan_2011  

Tim Walker  

(020 7525 2021) 

 
 
APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 
Appendix 1 Grove Vale CPZ, Consultation Report  
Appendix 2  Grove Vale CPZ, Appendices (in supplemental agenda pack) 
 
 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 

Lead Officer Tim Walker, Senior Engineer 
Report Author Paul Gellard, Transport and Projects Officer 

Version Final 
Dated 20 December 2011 

Key Decision? No 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET MEMBER 

Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 
Strategic Director for Communities, Law 
and Governance 

No No 

Finance Director No No 
Cabinet Member  Yes No 
Date final report sent to the Constitutional Team 20 December 2011 
 

19



Grove Vale 
1st and 2nd stage CPZ consultation report 

www.southwark.gov.uk January 2012 – DRAFT FOR COMMUNITY COUNCIL 

APPENDIX 1 20



- 2 - 

Grove Vale 
1st and 2nd stage CPZ consultation report 
January 2012 www.southwark.gov.uk 

Section A – Introduction and policy context.......................................................................................... 3

Section B – Study methods and decision making................................................................................. 5

Background of study.....................................................................................................................................5

History of parking consultations in the area ..............................................................................................5

CPZ requests..................................................................................................................................................6

Project structure ............................................................................................................................................6

Consultation area ..........................................................................................................................................7

Existing parking arrangements in the Grove Vale consultation area ......................................................9

Consultation document...............................................................................................................................10

Public exhibitions ........................................................................................................................................11

Further information .....................................................................................................................................11

Parking surveys ...........................................................................................................................................11

Section C – Consultation area questionnaire results summary ........................................................ 12

Summary of response rate .........................................................................................................................12

Headline consultation results.....................................................................................................................14

Supplementary questionnaire on driveway parking ................................................................................23

Consultation responses from outside the study area .............................................................................26

Communications made outside of the freepost or online questionnaire ..............................................28

Stakeholder communication.......................................................................................................................30

Summary of petitions and informal surveys.............................................................................................31

Section D – Parking stress survey summary....................................................................................... 33

Headline results ...........................................................................................................................................33

Section E – Grove Vale CPZ parking demand and initial design ....................................................... 35

Section F – Study conclusions and recommendations ...................................................................... 38

Grove Vale study area options...................................................................................................................41

List of figures.......................................................................................................................................... 44

List of appendices .................................................................................................................................. 44

Version control ....................................................................................................................................... 44

21



- 3 - 

Section A – Introduction and policy context  

This report details the findings of a study on the possibility of introducing parking controls in the 
Grove Vale area.  It provides the evidence base for the associated key decision report which sets 
out recommendations for the cabinet member for transport, environment and recycling. 

Southwark Council has twenty Controlled Parking Zones (CPZs) in operation (appendix 1) which have 

been introduced over a period of almost 40 years.  This time span reflects the historical and continued 

challenge, faced by every local authority, in matching the demand by drivers to park their cars with a 

finite supply of on-street parking spaces. 

The Parking and Enforcement Plan1 (PEP) sets out the council’s policy in the management of parking on 

its public highway.  The PEP acknowledges that few things polarise public opinion more than parking but 

that restrictions, in many areas of the borough, provide a critical tool in prioritising space in favour of 

certain groups (e.g. blue badge holders, residents or loading) as well as assisting in keeping the traffic 

flowing and improving road safety. 

The PEP was adopted as a supporting document to the council’s 2006 transport strategy, the Local 

Implementation Plan2 (LIP) which has recently been revised, consulted upon and adopted as the 

Transport Plan3.

The Transport Plan, incorporating Southwark’s Local implementation plan (Lip), is a statutory document, 

prepared under Section 145 of the Greater London Authority Act 1999. Southwark’s Transport Plan 

responds to the revised Mayor’s Transport Strategy (MTS), the Sub Regional Transport Plans (SRTPs), 

Southwark’s Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS) and other relevant policies.  

Amongst its eight key objectives, the Transport Plan sets out the council’s aim to “encourage sustainable 

travel choices” and “reduce the impact of transport on the environment”.   

The plan sets a target to reduce traffic levels by 3% by 2013.  

The Transport Plan states “the council supports the introduction of CPZs as an important traffic demand 

management tool. CPZs do not provide long-stay parking for commuters and therefore existing zones 

assist in reducing car trips within those zones as well as trips across and through the borough”.

1 http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Uploads/FILE_42772.pdf
2 http://www.southwark.gov.uk/YourServices/transport/lip/
3 http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011

22



- 4 - 

It continues that “parking controls are also significant in releasing suppressed demand for sustainable 

modes, such as walking, cycling and public transport.”   

It is important to recognise that the majority of households in Southwark do not have access to a car and 

the needs of this majority must also be considered in the allocation of street space. 

Parking is the end result of a trip. The availability of parking at a destination has a clear effect on whether 

the trip is made by car or not. Existing parking controls all across Southwark already assist in improving 

traffic and congestion levels.   

The council has a duty4  to provide suitable and adequate parking facilities on and off the highway as 

well as securing “the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular and other traffic (including 

pedestrians)”. 

Southwark’s roads provide a finite supply of parking space, limited by various existing measures for 

example to: improve safety (eg. pedestrian crossings), reduce congestion (eg. yellow lines), improve 

public journey times (eg. bus lanes) or encourage cycling (eg. cycle lanes).  

The remaining space can generally be used for parking but in areas where exceeds supply the 

prioritisation of that remaining kerb space becomes essential.  

In practice, the council prioritises that remaining space through the introduction of CPZs as well as the 

installation of local parking restrictions outside of those zones, to manage local parking and loading 

requirements.

4 Road Traffic Regulation Act, 1984, and Traffic Management Act, 2004

23



- 5 - 

Section B – Study methods and decision making 

Background of study 
The Parking Enforcement Plan (PEP) refers generally to this area as East Dulwich.  It suggests the area 
“may justify consideration of new zone” on the basis that it is close to a rail station with a mix of 
residential area (with a high density of car ownership per km2) as well as “employers or other attractions 
to visit the area”. 

In 2010, the council made a funding bid to Transport for London (TfL) so that a study about parking could 
be carried out in the Grove Vale area.  This bid was part of the council’s overall, annual bid to TfL for 
transport projects.  

The consultation area concentrates on streets around Grove Vale, which are a short walking distance 
from East Dulwich railway station.  

The streets were last consulted in 2002/3 as part of a wider Dulwich parking study. The 2002/3 study did 
not result in the installation of a CPZ. However, since the last parking consultation parking patterns and 
stress may have changed, this evidence is based on continued correspondence received from residents, 
requesting a CPZ consultation, particularly from those roads close to East Dulwich railway station. 

History of parking consultations in the area 

Date Consultation Outcome

2001-
2003

In late 2001 the Council 
commissioned Mott MacDonald Ltd to 
investigate the need for CPZ around 
three zone 2 stations in the area – 
Herne Hill, North Dulwich and East 
Dulwich stations. 

The first round of consultations was 
held in May 2002. 

The second round of consultations 
were held from October 2002 to 
December 2002 

Second stage consultation (a more limited area 
than 1st stage): 1800 Leaflets were distributed to 
the East Dulwich area in October 2002. 

244 responses were received, representing a 
13.6% response rate 

Majority (62%) perceived there to be a parking 
problem in the area. 

Majority (54%) were against the implementation 
of a CPZ in their street 

The streets that responded favourably to the 
CPZ proposals in the first round of consultation, 
Derwent Grove and Melbourne Grove, 
responded in favour of introducing CPZ 
measures. Those streets on the border of the 
zone including Tell and Matham Groves 
responded against the CPZ proposals. 

24



- 6 - 

CPZ requests 
In recent years, the council have received 44 requests from residents in the study area for a CPZ. This is 
where a resident has either made either a complaint or a general enquiry to the council, either directly to 
officers or via their elected members to request resident parking controls or a consultation. The highest 
number of requests have been received from East Dulwich Road (10) Derwent Grove (8), St Francis 
Road (6).  It is noted that the broader Grove Vale and Lordship Lane area of Southwark has the highest 
concentration of these requests of anywhere in the borough. 

Project structure  
Since adoption of the PEP, the council has generally carried out it’s CPZ projects by way of a two-stage 
consultation process5, except where the area limits are predetermined by physical, borough or existing 
CPZ boundaries or by budget constraints - in which case a joint 1st/2nd stage consultation may be carried 
out.  This latter constraint formed the structure for the Grove Vale study. 

First and second stage (combined) CPZ consultation 

Parking occupancy and duration surveys are carried out to analyse who is parking in the area and for 
how long. 

A questionnaire is sent out to every property within the area asking for opinions on the principal of a CPZ 
and whether or not they experience parking problems. During this stage we will consult on the detail of 
the zone, for example, we will ask views on the type and position of parking bays, the hours and days 
that the CPZ should operate and other detailed parking issues.  

During consultation period, public exhibitions are held in which the local community were invited to meet 
officers to view and discuss the detailed design. 

We will also ask our key stakeholders for their comments. 

Consultation replies and parking data are used to make a decision whether or not to introduce a CPZ in 
the area.

A draft consultation and key decision report is produced and sent to the community council for comment. 

The key decision is taken by the cabinet member for environment, transport and recycling on whether or 
not the CPZ is introduced. 

More detail of the process is shown in Figure 1. 

5 http://www.southwark.gov.uk/YourServices/transport/parking/cpzreviews/CPZ_how_consult/

25



- 7 - 

Consultation area
A presentation of the consultation methods and boundaries was given and approved at Dulwich 
Community Council on 15 September 2011 and Camberwell Community Council on 22 September 2011.   

The streets approved for consultation are situated within East Dulwich and South Camberwell Wards. 

Road No. of properties Ward
Adys Road 4 South Camberwell 
Besant Place 23 South Camberwell 
Copleston Road 73 South Camberwell 
Derwent Grove 82 East Dulwich 
Dog Kennel Hill 3 South Camberwell 
East Dulwich Grove 86 East Dulwich 
East Dulwich Road 112 East Dulwich 
Elsie Road  41 East Dulwich 
Grove Vale* 300 East Dulwich / South Camberwell 
Hayes Grove 66 South Camberwell 
Jarvis Road 3 East Dulwich 
Lordship Lane 24 East Dulwich 
Melbourne Grove 86 East Dulwich 
Oglander Road 1 South Camberwell 
Ondine Road 114 South Camberwell 
Oxonian Street 10 East Dulwich 
Railway Rise 4 East Dulwich 
St Francis Road  57 South Camberwell 
Tintagel Crescent 35 East Dulwich 
Tintagel Gardens 4 East Dulwich 
Vale End 2 South Camberwell 
Zenoria Street 29 East Dulwich 
TOTAL 1159

*Grove Vale is a boundary road between Camberwell and Dulwich community councils. 

.

26



- 8 - 

Figure 1 

Addendum – decision changed from strategic director to cabinet member on 25/5/11 

27



- 9 - 

Existing parking arrangements in the Grove Vale consultation area 
Parking within the consultation area is predominantly uncontrolled but there are some restrictions that 
that prevent kerb-side parking.  These are summarised as: 

Existing restrictions within the consultation area 
that prevent kerb-side parking Location

Bus Priority measures 
(eg. Bus stops) 

Grove Vale and Lordship Lane. Historical 
restrictions at northern end of Melbourne Grove 

Origin disabled bays 
(outside residents homes who meets the council’s criteria) 

11 installed throughout area, outside residents 
homes

School keep clear markings 
(marking to prevent parking at the school entrance)

Tintagel Crescent  

Road safety measures 
(eg. Formal pedestrian crossings) 

Grove Vale 

Short term free parking bays  
(to assist turn-over space for local businesses) 

Grove Vale and Melbourne Grove 

Loading bays Elise Road and Zenoria Street 

Car club parking bays Derwent Grove and Elsie Road 

Local traffic management 
(single/double yellow lines to assist in sight lines and 
maintain traffic flow) 

Throughout the area there are local parking 
restrictions on some (but not all) junctions.  
More significant restrictions exist on East Dulwich 
Grove, Grove Vale and Lordship Lane.  

Vehicle crossovers allow access to private land (ie 
residential front driveways) parking is generally 
permitted but it can be enforced against by the 
council at request of the landowner (certain conditions 
apply)

Various locations throughout the area. 
Predominantly in Elsie Road and Melbourne Grove. 

Dropped kerbs / raised footways – informal crossing 
points installed to assist pedestrian to cross the road 
and where parking is unlawful. 

Various locations throughout consultation area. 

The above controls operate within the consultation area and are mapped in appendix 2.  Additionally, 
there are existing CPZs in the surrounding neighbourhood that will likely have influence upon the supply 
of on-street parking through the effects of displacement.  The nearest CPZs are South Camberwell (L 
CPZ) Herne Hill (HH CPZ) and Peckham town centre (B CPZ).  

It should be noted that CPZs further afield, are also likely to play a part in impacting upon supply of on-
street parking. CPZs in the north of Southwark (and across all central London authorities) prevent long-
stay parking where motorists may otherwise choose to park and continue their journey on-foot to work.  
These other London CPZs are extensive in their area (covering all of transport Zone 1 and most of Zone 
2) and provide protection to local residents; this may result in some motorists choosing to drive to outer 
rail stations or to locations that are adjacent to bus routes and then continuing on their journey by train or 
bus.

28



- 10 - 

Consultation document 
1159 postal addresses are located within the Grove Vale consultation area. This data was derived from 
the council’s Local Land and Property Gazetteer (LLPG).   

Distribution of the consultation documents (appendix 3) was made on 14 October 2011 by way of a 
blanket hand-delivery to all (residential and commercial) properties within the consultation area.  The 
delivery was carried out by officers in the parking projects team. 

The document was also sent to key and local stakeholders.  Local stakeholders were identified as the 
cabinet member for environment, transport and recycling, ward members, Metropolitan Police Service, 
London Ambulance Service, London Fire Brigade, Transport for London, internal council teams and 
transport user groups.

The document was designed to present information on: 

 Why the consultation was being carried out 

 How recipients could contribute / decision making 

 What the 1st  and 2nd  stage CPZ consultation was about 

 Southwark’s policy in regard to CPZ 

 Frequently asked questions 

 Indicative initial design drawing  

 Website link to the online questionnaire and initial design drawing 

By way of a questionnaire, the document sought the recipient’s details and views on: 

 Their address 

 Whether they park (on-street) 

 Current ability to park 

 When problems occur 

 Whether they agree with the proposed introduction of a CPZ in their street 

 Whether their opinion would change if a CPZ was introduced in an adjacent street 

 Initial design, including the positioning and type of parking bays 

 Hours/days of enforcement 

 Any other comments 

The document followed Southwark’s communications guidelines and provided detail on large print 
versions and translation services. 

The questionnaire could be returned in a provided freepost envelope to the council’s offices or 
completed online via Southwark’s consultation webpage. 

29



- 11 - 

Documents were delivered on 14 October 2011 and the response period ran until 11 November 2011 
(the usual period of 3 weeks for such consultations was extended because of the school half term). 
Officers accepted and inputted responses up to 14 November 2011. 

Additionally, details of a phone number and email address were provided to those receiving the 
document should they wish to talk to an officer or email their comments.  In those cases, officers 
provided assistance and advised residents that they should also complete their questionnaire as data 
from this formed the main basis of the results analysis. 

Public exhibitions 
The parking projects team held two public exhibitions at Grove Vale Library on: 

 Saturday 5 November 2011, 10am-2pm 

34* signed the exhibition attendance register (18 within consultation boundary / 16 outside) 

 Wednesday 9 November 2011, 4pm-8pm 

25* signed the exhibition attendance register (18 within consultation boundary / 7 outside) 

* Figures only take into account those who actually signed the register 

Further information 
27 street notices were erected within the consultation area (appendix 4) on 17 October 2011.  A copy of 
the street notices can be found in appendix 5.  The notice provided contact details (telephone and email) 
for more detail on the consultation and advice of what to do if consultation packs had not been received. 

The council’s parking consultation webpage6 was also updated with detail of the active consultation, its 
process and how decisions would be taken.  A selection of frequently asked questions in relation to 
CPZs also provided an additional source of information for those making enquiries as to what a CPZ 
could mean to them.

As mentioned above, a direct phone number and email address to the parking projects team was made 
available to allow those wishing to making enquires via those methods.  Officers assisted with response 
and also recommended that the callers complete their questionnaire. 

A supplementary questionnaire was also sent to residents with a dropped kerb, leasing to a private 
driveway, in Elsie Road and Melbourne Grove on their preferred restriction across their driveway. 

Parking surveys 
To quantify the parking situation, Count on Us were commissioned to undertake parking surveys on a 
weekday, Thursday 10 February 2011 and a weekend, Saturday 12 and Sunday 13 February 2011 to 
ascertain parking occupancy and duration of stay on all public highway roads within the consultation 
area. A summarised version of the parking beat surveys can be found in appendix 6.    

6 http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200140/parking_projects

30



- 12 - 

Section C – Consultation area questionnaire results summary 

Summary of response rate 
Figure 2 shows that the Grove Vale consultation yielded 241 returned questionnaires from within the 
consultation area, representing a 21% response rate.  This is a good response rate for this type of 
consultation when compared with similar consultations in the borough and benchmarked against other 
London authorities. 

The highest response rate was from Elsie Road (51%), the lowest were Dog Kennel Hill, Jarvis Road, 
Oglander Road, Railway Rise and Vale End with no responses. As there were only a few properties in 
these streets, this may explain the lack of responses. Figure 2.1 provides a graph of each streets 
response rate. 

The PEP sets out that the council will give significant weight to the consultation return when it exceeds a 
20% threshold.  In accordance with the PEP, other local information sources (such as quantitative 
parking studies, future development, likely impact of surrounding parking controls and community council 
opinion) should be given greater weighting where the threshold is not reached.  

A further 27 comments were made either by email, letter or phone. 

Street Delivered Returned 
Response 

rate Telephone Email/Letter
Total responses 
to consultation 

Adys Road 4 2 50% 1  3
Besant Place 23 2 9%  2
Copleston Road 73 18 25% 1  19
Derwent Grove 82 31 38% 1 3  35
Dog Kennel Hill 3 0 0%  0
East Dulwich Grove 86 12 14%  12
East Dulwich Road 112 22 20%  22
Elsie Road 41 20 49% 3 4  27
Grove Vale 300 22 7% 1  23
Hayes Grove 66 6 9%  6
Jarvis Road  3 0 0%  0
Lordship Lane 24 1 4%  1
Melbourne Grove 86 17 20% 1 3  21
Oglander Road 1 0 0%  0
Ondine Road 114 36 32% 1 4  41
Oxonian Street 10 2 20%  2
Railway Rise 4 0 0%  0
St Francis Road 57 22 39% 1  23
Tintagel Crescent 35 13 37% 2  15
Tintagel Gardens 4 2 50%  2
Vale End 2 0 0%  0
Zenoria Street 29 13 45% 1  14
TOTAL 1159 241 21% 9 18  268

Figure 2 

The options and recommendations are based on feedback received from the public consultation in 
conjunction with objective analysis of occupancy data from parking stress surveys. 

31



R
es

p
o

n
se

 R
at

e

50
%

9%

25
%

38
%

14
%

20
%

49
%

7%
9%

4%

20
%

32
%

20
%

39
%

37
%

50
%

45
%

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
% Ady

s
Roa

d Bes
ant

 P
lac

e Cople
sto

n R
oa

d Derw
ent 

Gro
ve

Eas
t D

ulw
ich

Gro
ve

Eas
tDulw

ich
 R

oa
d

Elsi
e

Roa
d

Gro
ve

 V
ale

Haye
s 

Gro
ve Lo

rd
sh

ip
La

ne M
elb

ou
rn

eGro
ve Ond

ine
Roa

d Oxo
nia

n S
tre

et StF
ra

ncis
 R

oa
d

Tint
ag

el 
Cre

sc
en

t
Tint

ag
el 

Gar
de

ns Zen
oria

Stre
et

S
tr

e
e

t

R
es

po
ns

e 
ra

te

O
ve

ra
ll 

re
sp

on
se

 r
at

e

F
ig

u
re

 2
.1

 

- 
13

 -
 

32



Headline consultation results 
1) 72% of questionnaire were returned by post and 28% submitted online. 

2) 94% of responses were received from residential properties. Based upon OS land use survey 
data (appendix 7) this is reasonably representative of the area. 

3) 6% of responses came from businesses, the majority of these coming from Grove Vale and 
Melbourne Grove. 

4) It is worth noting that 18 duplicate responses have been omitted from the analysis. A duplicate is 
where a response, from the same property address, was submitted twice, by post and online. 

5) The majority of duplicates were received from Derwent Grove (5) and St Francis Road (3). 

Q1) Do you have off-street parking? 

6) The vast majority (80%) of respondents do not have any off-street parking.  It is therefore 
assumed that the remainder (20%) either have private driveways, estate parking or private car 
parks (ie small surface car parks most usually associated with small apartment blocks). 

7) The highest proportion of off-street parking is in Elsie Road. 

Q2) How many vehicles do you park on the street? 

8) The majority of respondents have access to one or more vehicle.  Only 10% of respondents in 
the study area don’t have a vehicle.  This response is unrepresentative for the ward where East 
Dulwich 39.8% and South Camberwell 48% don’t have a car7 and Southwark (51.9%) – although 
these figures are based on 2001 census data.  This may reflect the fact that car users are more 
likely to respond than non-users as they perceive themselves as more directly affected. 

9) 67% of respondents park one vehicle on the public highway, detailed in Figure 3. 

67%

14%
10%

7%
2%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

1 2 or more None I dont have a
vehicle

None I park off street No Answer

Figure 3 
7 Office for National Statistics, Census Area Statistics, KS17 

- 14 - 

33



Q3) Please rate the ability to find an on-street parking space near this address? 

10) Across the whole consultation area, when asked about your ability to find an on-street parking 
space: 44% found it easy or easy/moderate, 40% found it moderate/difficult or difficult. The 
results were similar but indicated that visitor parking was more difficult (37% easy or 
easy/moderate v 43% moderate/difficult or difficult). Figure 4 

11) Tintagel Crescent (85%), Derwent Grove (65%) and Zenoria Street (54%) showed the highest 
proportion of respondents rating their ability to find an on-street parking space near their address 
as moderate/difficult or difficult. 

12) Ondine Road (64%), St Francis Road (55%) and Grove Vale (45%) showed the highest 
proportion of respondents rating their ability to find an on-street parking space near their address 
as easy or easy/moderate. There was also a high proportion (100%) from Adys Road, Hayes 
Grove, and Lordship Lane. However, it should be noted that Hayes Grove has private off street 
parking and few responses were received from Adys Road and Lordship Lane. 

e noted that Hayes Grove has private off street 
parking and few responses were received from Adys Road and Lordship Lane. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

57

41

36

41

50
47

38

45

37

60

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Easy Easy / Moderate Moderate Moderate / Difficult Difficult

Yourself

Your visitors

Figure 4Figure 4

  

  

  

  

- 15 - 

34



Q4) What time of day do you or your visitors have difficulty parking? 

13) Question 4 was provided to ascertain when respondents most felt parking difficulties occurred. 
Figure 5 details the overall responses. The largest response group expressed that their parking 
problems occurred weekdays during the daytime.  The second largest group said that problems 
occurred during the weekday evenings, followed by Saturdays. The table provides a count of the 
top three responses from each option. Respondents could select as many or few times periods 
as they considered appropriate. 

You Your visitors 

Monday – Friday, daytime 
22 – Derwent Grove 
15 – Elsie Road 
11 – Tintagel Crescent 

22 - Derwent Grove 
14 – Elsie Road 
11 – Tintagel Crescent 

Monday – Friday, evening 
14 – Derwent Grove 
12 – East Dulwich Road 
12 – Ondine Road 

15 – Derwent Grove 
9 – East Dulwich Road 
8 – Tintagel Crescent 

Saturday
10 – Derwent Grove 
9 – Zenoria Street 
8 – East Dulwich Road 

11 – Derwent Road 
10 – East Dulwich Road 
9 – Tintagel Crescent 

Sunday
9 – Zenoria Street 
7 – East Dulwich Road 
6 – Tintagel Crescent 

9 – Zenoria Street 
6 – Tintagel Crescent 
5 – Derwent Grove / East Dulwich Road 

Never 
17 – Ondine Road 
10 – St Francis Road 
7 – Grove Vale 

14 – Ondine Road 
10 – St Francis Road 
7 – Copleston Road 

114

74

64

45

67

108

66
70

45

51

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Monday - Friday daytime Monday - Friday evening Saturday Sunday Never

You

Your visitors

Figure 5 

- 16 - 

35



- 17 - 

Q5) Do you agree with the proposed introduction of a controlled parking zone in your street? 

14) The key question of “do you agree with the proposed introduction of a CPZ in your street?” is 
tabulated for the entire consultation area in Figure 6, graphed in Figure 6.1 and individual 
responses mapped on a street-by-street bases in Figure 6.2.  

59%

6%

35%

Count of question5

Response 
Overall 
total 

Percentage 

Yes 84 35%
No 143 59%
Undecided 14 6%

No
Undecided
Yes

question5

Do you agree with the proposed introduction of a CPZ 
in your street? Response rate 

Street No No % Yes Yes % Undecided Undecided % 
Total 
returned

Total 
delivered 

Response 
rate% 

Adys Road 2 100% 0 0% 0 0% 2 4 50%
Besant Place 1 50% 1 50% 0 0% 2 23 9%
Copleston Road 11 61% 6 33% 1 6% 18 73 25%
Derwent Grove 12 39% 19 61% 0 0% 31 82 38%
Dog Kennel Hill 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 3 0%
East Dulwich Grove 7 58% 2 17% 3 25% 12 86 14%
East Dulwich Road 15 68% 5 23% 2 9% 22 112 20%
Elsie Road 10 50% 7 35% 3 15% 20 41 49%
Grove Vale 14 64% 8 36% 0 0% 22 300 7%
Hayes Grove 5 83% 1 17% 0 0% 6 66 9%
Jarvis Road 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 3 0%
Lordship Lane 1 100% 0 0% 0 0% 1 24 4%
Melbourne Grove 8 47% 7 41% 2 12% 17 86 20%
Oglander Road 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 1 0%
Ondine Road 30 83% 6 17% 0 0% 36 114 32%
Oxonian Street 2 100% 0 0% 0 0% 2 10 20%
Railway Rise 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 4 0%
St Francis Road 13 59% 7 32% 2 9% 22 57 39%
Tintagel Crescent 4 31% 8 62% 1 8% 13 35 37%
Tintagel Gardens 1 50% 1 50% 0 0% 2 4 50%
Vale End 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 2 0%
Zenoria Street 7 54% 6 46% 0 0% 13 29 45%

GRAND TOTAL 143 59% 84 35% 14 6% 241 1159 21% 

Figure 6 

36



2

1

11

12

7
15

10

14

5

1

8

30

2

13

4

1
7

1

3
2

3
2

2

1

1

6

19

2
5

7
8

1

7

6

7

8

1
6

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%
Adys Road

Besant Place

Copleston Road

Derwent Grove

East Dulwich Grove

East Dulwich Road

Elsie Road

Grove Vale

Hayes Grove

Lordship Lane

Melbourne Grove

Ondine Road

Oxonian Street

St Francis Road

Tintagel Crescent

Tintagel Gardens

Zenoria Street

Y
es

U
ndecided

N
o

C
ount of question5

S
treet

question5

F
ig

u
re 6.1 

- 18 - 

37



F
ig

u
re

 6
.2

 

- 
19

 -
 

38



Q6) Would you change your mind if a CPZ was introduced in street next to yours? 

15) Those persons who responded that they didn’t want or were undecided on a CPZ in their street 
were asked a further question8 if they would change their mind if a CPZ was to be introduced in 
an adjacent street.  

16) Figure 7 details the responses.  The majority (61%) would not change their mind and wanted to 
keep their street uncontrolled even if a CPZ was introduced into an adjacent street.  

17) Only East Dulwich Road and Zenoria Street stated that they would change their mind, as shown 
in Figure 7.1. 

Q6 No Undecided Yes 
East Dulwich Road 7 (41%) 2 (12%) 8 (47%) 
Zenoria Street 2 (29%) 2 (29%) 3 (43%) 

61%
20%

19%
No

Undecided

Yes

Figure 7 

Figure 7.1 

- 20 - 

8 Those persons completing the paper copy of the questionnaire were able to answer this Q6 even if they had said “yes” to Q5. 
As their views were not relevant in analysing Q6 we have deleted their responses from the results in this question section. 

39



Q7) Do you agree with the proposed position of the parking bays?

18) An initial design drawing showing the proposed parking layout was provided in the consultation 
pack and comments were sought from respondents. 48% of those who responded agreed with 
the parking bay layout and 39% did not. 

Q8) Do you agree with the proposed type of parking bays?

19) A further question relating to the detailed design was, “do you agree with the proposed type of 
parking bay?” 44% of those who responded agreed with design and 45% did not. 

Q9) If you answered ‘no’ or ‘undecided’ to Q8 please suggest what type of bay you think there 
should be more of?

20)  Of those who did not agree with the proposed type of parking bays 27 want more short stay ‘free’ 
bays and 25 wanted more shared use bays. Of note was that 10 respondents to this question 
considered that more on-street bicycle parking was required. Whilst the initial design did not 
propose any, this information is valuable to the council for future schemes. Figure 8 details all the 
responses to this question9.

13

25

8

27

7

11
10 10

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Permit holders Shared Use Loading Short stay Destination
disabled

Pay and
display

On-street
bicycle parking

Car club bay

Figure 8 

- 21 - 

9 We have presented all the results to this question including the replies made by those who had said “yes” to question Q8; there were only 5 
suggestions made by these people.  

40



Q11) If parking controls were introduced, which of the following options would you prefer?

21)  Of the two options being formally consulted upon, the majority (47%) considered the lesser 
hours (10.00am to 12noon during Monday to Friday) as their preferred choice. 31% selected 
8.30am to 6.30pm, Monday to Friday as their preferred choice (Figure 9). 

47%

31%

22%

Monday - Friday from
10.00am - 12noon

Monday - Friday from
8.30am - 6.30pm

No answer

Figure 9 
22) Respondents also had opportunity to make an ‘alternative suggestion’.  Answers provided here 

ranged from ‘no parking controls at all’ to requests for Saturday and Sunday controls. 

23) Finally, other comments were sought.  Understandably, the responses given generally mirrored 
the view expressed to the key question of whether a CPZ was wanted or not. Figure 10 provides 
a random selection of comments from those in support of controls. Figure 11 provides a random 
selection of comments from those against controls.  The text positions are indicative of the 
location the responses originated from. 

- 22 - 

41



- 23 - 

Supplementary questionnaire on driveway parking 
During the consultation period a supplementary questionnaire was hand delivered on 14 October 2011 to 
31 properties in Elsie Road and Melbourne Grove.  This questionnaire asked recipients, if a CPZ was to 
be introduced, what parking restrictions they would prefer in front of their driveway. Residents were 
offered one of the following 2 options: 

Option A – Double yellow line across your driveway 
If a double yellow line is placed across a driveway, nobody, including the resident or owner of that 
house, can park across it without risking getting a parking ticket. 

Option B – Parking bay and white bar marking across your driveway 
If a residents’ parking bay is placed across a driveway together with a white bar stretching across the 
whole driveway (showing that access is needed at all times), the resident or owner of that house or their 
visitor can park across it without risking getting a parking ticket. But equally, so can any other motorist. 

The supplementary questionnaire yielded 14 responses and is summarised in Figure 12  

Road

Supplementary 
questionnaires 
delivered Returned 

Response 
rate

Option A 
(double yellow 
line)

Option B 
(Parking bay and 
white bar) 

Melbourne 
Grove* 11 4 36% 3  0
Elsie Road 20 10 50% 2 8
TOTAL 31 14 45% 5 8

* 1 respondent from Melbourne Grove would prefer a single yellow line across their access    Figure 12

42



F
ig

ur
e 

10
 –

 A
 r

an
do

m
 s

el
ec

tio
n 

of
 c

om
m

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
by

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 r
es

po
nd

ed
 in

 f
av

o
u

r 
of

 th
e 

C
P

Z
 (

po
si

tio
ns

 a
re

 g
eo

gr
ap

hi
ca

lly
 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
e)

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

m
at

er
ia

l w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f O
rd

na
nc

e 
S

ur
ve

y 
on

 b
eh

al
f o

f t
he

 C
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

er
 m

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
na

ry
 O

ffi
ce

  
©

 C
ro

w
n 

co
py

rig
ht

. U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

co
py

rig
ht

 a
nd

 m
ay

 le
ad

 to
 p

ro
du

ct
io

n 
or

 c
iv

il 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s.
 (

(0
)1

00
01

92
52

) 
20

11
 

43



F
ig

ur
e 

11
 –

 A
 r

an
do

m
 s

el
ec

tio
n 

of
 c

om
m

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
by

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 r
es

po
nd

ed
 a

g
ai

n
st

th
e 

C
P

Z
 (

po
si

tio
ns

 a
re

 g
eo

gr
ap

hi
ca

lly
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
e)

 

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
O

rd
na

nc
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

m
at

er
ia

l w
ith

 th
e 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f O
rd

na
nc

e 
S

ur
ve

y 
on

 b
eh

al
f o

f t
he

 C
on

tr
ol

le
r 

of
 H

er
 m

aj
es

ty
's

 S
ta

tio
na

ry
 O

ffi
ce

  
©

 C
ro

w
n 

co
py

rig
ht

. U
na

ut
ho

ris
ed

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
in

fr
in

ge
s 

C
ro

w
n 

co
py

rig
ht

 a
nd

 m
ay

 le
ad

 to
 p

ro
du

ct
io

n 
or

 c
iv

il 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s.
 (

(0
)1

00
01

92
52

) 
20

11
 

44



- 26 - 

Consultation responses from outside the study area 
The consultation yielded 155 responses from residents or businesses from outside the consultation area, 
responses being received from a total of 52 different streets. 

Although the consultation pack was only delivered to those within the consultation boundary, residents 
and businesses from outside the consultation boundary completed the online questionnaire by selecting 
‘other’ when having to provide their road name then manually entering their street name. 

It is assumed that people’s awareness to the consultation was via community council, street notices, 
word of mouth, public exhibitions, the council’s consultation webpage and/or the East Dulwich forum. 

The key question of “do you agree with the proposed introduction of a CPZ in your street?” showed a 
majority (No, 136 v Yes, 11) against controls, with 8 responding undecided. This is graphed on a street-
by-street basis in figure 13. 

Figure 13.1 shows from what streets, the majority of online questionnaire responses came from. It is 
clear that the listed streets are on the periphery of the study area and are likely to be concerned of any 
impact a CPZ would have on their street or generally in their neighbourhood. This is reflected in the 
comments section of the questionnaire by many respondents. 

Street
No. of online 
questionnaire responses 

Oglander Road 13
Trossachs Road 11
Melbourne Grove 10
Marsden Road 8
Glengarry road 7
Lordship Lane 7
Muschamp Road 7
Tarbert Road 6
Worlingham Road 6
Ashbourne Grove 5
Tell Grove 5
Abbotswood road 4
Adys Road 4
Copleston Road 4
Nutfield Road 4
Everthorpe Road 3
Matham Grove 3

Figure 13.1 

45



- 27 - 

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14

Abbotswood road
Adys Road

Ashbourne Grove
Barry Road

Bassano Street
Bawdale Road

Belham walk
Bellenden Road

Blackwater Street
Calton Avenue

Chesterfield Grove
Choumert Road

Colwell Road
Copleston Road
Crawthew Grove

Crystal Palace
Danby Street

Dog Kennel Hill
Dunstans Road

Dylways
East Dulwich Road

Everthorpe Road
Fellbrigg Road

Friern Road
Frogley Road

Glengarry road
Goodrich Road
Hinckley Road

Hindmans Road
Lacon Road

Lordship Lane
Marsden Road
Matham Grove

Melbourne Grove
Mount Adon Park
Muschamp Road

Nutbrook Street
Nutfield Road

Oglander Road
Overhill Road

Oxenford Street
Pellatt Road

Rodwell Road
St Aidans Road

Tarbert Road
Tell Grove

Thorncombe Road
Townley Road

Trossachs Road
Underhill Road
Whateley Road

Worlingham Road

Y
es

U
ndecided

N
o

C
ount of question5

othercontactdetails

question5

F
ig

u
re 13 

46



- 28 - 

Communications made outside of the freepost or online questionnaire
Figure 2 displays the type of communication used by all respondents during consultation.  

For the purposes of analysis, the figures used (unless stated otherwise) are based upon actual 
responses to the questionnaire via the freepost or online address. It is noted that when respondents 
scanned and emailed their responses to the council these have been included in the main questionnaire 
dataset.

Whilst inference can be made about the view expressed in an email or letter, for example, the council 
are unable to add these figures directly into the questionnaire results. This is to encourage people to 
read the information contained within the consultation pack, respond to specific questions, avoid risk of 
duplication from those persons who respond by more than one method (by email and questionnaire, for 
example) and to avoid misinterpretation by the officer inputting the data. 

Communications made outside of the questionnaire responses have been included in this study and 
Figures 14 and summarise the main purpose of the correspondence.  

47



- 29 - 

Summary of other correspondence received during the consultation period. 

Road
Against a 
CPZ

Supports a 
CPZ

Concerned about 
being excluded from 
the consultation / 
knock on 

General 
consultation / 
CPZ enquiry 

Request for a 
consultation 
document 

Number of 
individuals 
contacting the 
council  

ABBOTSWOOD ROAD 1 1

ADYS ROAD 1 1 1 3

BAWDALE ROAD 1 1 3 3

BELLENDEN ROAD 1 2 2

BESANT PLACE 1 1

BUXTED ROAD 1 1

CHESTERFIELD GROVE 1 1 1

CHOUMERT ROAD 1 1

COPLESTON ROAD 2 1 3

CRAWTHEW GROVE 1 1

DERWENT GROVE 1 3 4

ELSIE ROAD 1 6 7

EVERTHORPE ROAD 1 1

FROGLEY ROAD 1 1

GLENGARRY ROAD 1 1

GROVE VALE 1 1

HINCKLEY ROAD 1 2 2

IVANHOE ROAD 1 1

LORDSHIP LANE 1 1 2

MALFORT ROAD 2 1 2

MARSDEN ROAD 11 3 11

MELBOURNE GROVE 2 1 1 5 6

MUSCHAMP ROAD 4 2 1 5

NOT PROVIDED 1 1 3 1 10

NUTFIELD ROAD 1 1

OGLANDER ROAD 12 1 15 21

ONDINE ROAD 4 1 3 6

ST FRANCIS ROAD 2 1 2

TARBERT ROAD 2 2 2

TELL GROVE 1 1 2

TINTAGEL CRESCENT 1 1 3

TROSSACHS ROAD 3 3 2 5

ZENORIA STREET 1 1

Grand Total 53 8 40 34 3 114

Figure 14 

48



- 30 - 

Stakeholder communication 
Four pieces of correspondence were received from key stakeholders relating to the consultation, this is 
detailed in figure 15 

Key stakeholder Summary of comments 
Southwark Cyclists 
and
Southwark Living Streets 
(joint reply) 

Although we are not residents of the area, we represent the interests of many 
people using the streets in the area on cycles and on foot. 

The CPZ regulates inconsiderate use of the kerbside, which helps cyclists and 
pedestrians.  

Any reduction in the practice of commuters leaving their cars near East Dulwich 
station and commuting onward by train will improve the public realm for local 
people and reduce pressure on on-street car parking space. 

A possible consequence may be that more people will cycle to the station. The 
capacity of the on–street cycle parking at the station may need to be increased. 
There appears to be room on the footways for this.

Southwark Disability Forum The Local Authority should consider if there are any unintended consequences 
of any decision for some groups, and second, consider if the policy will be fully 
effective for all groups. It involves using equality information, and the results of 
engagement with protected groups and others, to understand the actual effect or 
the potential effect of Local Authority functions, policies or decisions. It can help 
the Local Authority to identify practical steps to tackle any negative effects or 
discrimination, to advance equality and to foster good relations. 

London Travel Watch The introduction of a scheme may result in displacement of parking onto 
adjacent bus routes, causing delays to buses and their passengers. Would you 
please ensure that consideration is given to upgrading parking controls on Grove 
Vale, an adjacent bus route, so that this possibility is avoided. 

Goose Green Primary 
School,
Tintagel Crescent 

A CPZ will not prevent the double parking and short stay parking on the white 
lines during school drop off and pick up. Therefore the parking problem will not 
be resolved. 

The resident permit will not alleviate the problem outside the school at 8.50-9.00 
and 3.15-3.40. We need a defined drop off zone and short term parking. 

Figure 15 

49



- 31 - 

Summary of petitions and informal surveys 
Nine petitions / informal parking surveys were received in response to the consultation undertaken in 
October - November 2011 in relation to the Grove Vale CPZ study, as follows: 

1) Derwent Grove. An informal parking consultation was carried out by a resident of Derwent Grove. 
The informal consultation offered 3 options and was signed by 23 residents of Derwent Grove. 

18 signatures in favour of controls (14 opted for Mon-Fri, 10.00am -12noon v 4 opted for Mon-Fri 
8.30am-6.30pm) and 5 signatures do not support a CPZ. 

2) Marsden Road, Maxted Road, Ondine Road, Oglander Road, Waghorn Road. A petition collated 
and submitted by a resident of Marsden Road containing 66 signatures from residents in Ondine 
Road, Oglander Road, Marsden Road, Maxted Road and Waghorn Road registering their 
opposition to the proposed CPZ in the area. 

3) Oglander Road. An informal parking consultation was carried out by a resident in Oglander Road. 
A total of 23 questionnaires were delivered to Oglander Road residents between Everthorpe 
Road and Grove Vale. 

A majority (17 v 2) are opposed to a CPZ around Grove Vale / East Dulwich Station and all 19 
are against the proposed CPZ as it currently stands. 

A majority (15 v 2) would like Oglander Road incorporated into the CPZ if the scheme were to go 
ahead.

4) Tell Grove. An informal parking consultation was carried out by a resident of Tell Grove. The 
question, ‘do you want controlled parking?’ was a split decision (Yes 9 v No 9). 18 respondents 
opted for ‘yes’ when ask ‘if a neighbouring street had CPZ, would you want it as well?’ 

5) Wide area. A petition collated and submitted by the South Southwark Business Association, 
contained 874 resident and amenity user signatures objecting to proposed introduction of a CPZ 
in and around Grove Vale. The addresses on the petition cover a wide area of Dulwich. 

6) Wide area. A petition collated and submitted by the South Southwark Business Association, 
contained 311 business signatures from the area objecting to proposed introduction of a CPZ in 
and around Grove Vale. 

7) Hinckley Road, Keston Road and Oglander Road. A petition collated and submitted by a resident 
of Trossachs Road containing 15 signatures from residents in Hinckley Road, Keston Road and 
Oglander Road registering their opposition to the proposed CPZ in the area. 

8) Wide area. A petition collated and submitted by a resident of Trossachs Road containing 381 
signatures from residents throughout Dulwich registering their opposition to the proposed CPZ in 
the area. 

9) Trossachs Road. An informal parking consultation was carried out by a resident of Trossachs 
Road. The informal consultation asked if residents were for or against controlled parking on 
streets near East Dulwich Station. All 148 respondents are against controls. 

The petitions have been summarised in figure 16.

50



- 
32

 -
 

P
et

it
io

n
 

re
f

T
yp

e 
C

o
lla

te
d

 b
y 

D
at

e
re

ce
iv

ed
 

T
it

le
F

o
r

A
g

ai
n

st
 

P
et

it
io

n
 d

et
ai

l 

00
1

P
et

iti
on

 / 
In

fo
rm

al
pa

rk
in

g
su

rv
ey

 

R
es

id
en

t o
f 

D
er

w
en

t 
G

ro
ve

04
/1

1/
11

G
ro

ve
 V

al
e,

 C
on

tr
ol

le
d 

P
ar

ki
ng

 Z
on

e 
st

ud
y.

 P
et

iti
on

 o
f s

up
po

rt
 

fr
om

 D
er

w
en

t G
ro

ve
 R

es
id

en
ts

 
18

5
T

he
 1

4 
D

er
w

en
t G

ro
ve

 r
es

id
en

ts
 in

 fa
vo

ur
 o

pt
ed

 fo
r 

M
on

-F
ri,

 1
0a

m
 

to
 1

2 
no

on
 

T
he

 4
 D

er
w

en
t G

ro
ve

 r
es

id
en

ts
 in

 fa
vo

ur
 o

pt
ed

 fo
r 

M
on

 –
 F

ri,
 

8.
30

am
 –

 6
.3

0p
m

 
00

2
P

et
iti

on
R

es
id

en
t o

f 
M

ar
sd

en
R

oa
d

04
/1

1/
11

W
e,

 th
e 

un
de

rs
ig

ne
d,

 w
is

h 
to

 r
eg

is
te

r 
ou

r 
op

po
si

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
zo

ne
 in

 o
ur

 a
re

a 
66

P
et

iti
on

 s
ig

ne
d 

by
 r

es
id

en
ts

 in
 O

nd
in

e 
R

oa
d,

 O
gl

an
de

r 
R

oa
d,

 
M

ar
sd

en
 R

oa
d,

 M
ax

te
d 

R
oa

d 
an

d 
W

ag
ho

rn
 R

oa
d 

00
3

In
fo

rm
al

pa
rk

in
g

su
rv

ey
 

R
es

id
en

t o
f 

O
gl

an
de

r 
R

oa
d

10
/1

1/
11

P
ro

po
se

d 
C

on
tr

ol
le

d 
P

ar
ki

ng
 Z

on
e 

ne
ar

 E
as

t D
ul

w
ic

h 
S

ta
tio

n 
Q

1,
 A

re
 y

ou
 in

 fa
vo

ur
 o

r 
op

po
se

d 
to

 a
 C

P
Z

 a
ro

un
d 

G
ro

ve
 V

al
e 

/ 
E

as
t D

ul
w

ic
h 

2
17

N
on

e 
of

 th
e 

O
gl

an
de

r 
R

oa
d 

re
si

de
nt

s 
ar

e 
in

 fa
vo

ur
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
C

P
Z

 a
s 

it 
cu

rr
en

tly
 s

ta
nd

s 
bu

t 1
5 

w
ou

ld
 w

an
t a

 o
pt

 fo
r 

a 
C

P
Z

 if
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 w

er
e 

to
 g

o 
ah

ea
d 

00
4

In
fo

rm
al

pa
rk

in
g

su
rv

ey
 

R
es

id
en

t o
f 

T
el

l G
ro

ve
 

12
/1

1/
11

R
es

id
en

ts
 o

f T
el

l G
ro

ve
 –

 P
ar

ki
ng

 S
ur

ve
y 

D
o 

yo
u 

w
an

t c
on

tr
ol

le
d 

pa
rk

in
g?

 
9

9
T

he
 1

8 
T

el
l G

ro
ve

 r
es

id
en

ts
 th

at
 s

ig
ne

d 
th

e 
pe

tit
on

 w
ou

ld
 o

pt
 fo

r 
a 

C
P

Z
 (

M
on

-F
ri,

 1
0a

m
-1

2n
oo

n)
 if

 a
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

in
g 

st
re

et
 w

er
e 

to
 

be
co

m
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

d.
 

00
5

P
et

iti
on

S
ou

th
S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
B

us
in

es
s

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n

14
/1

1/
11

R
es

id
en

ts
 a

n
d

 A
m

en
it

y 
u

se
rs

 
W

e 
th

e 
un

de
rs

ig
ne

d,
 o

bj
ec

t t
o 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
pr

op
os

ed
 

in
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 a

 C
on

tr
ol

le
d 

P
ar

ki
ng

 Z
on

e 
in

 a
nd

 a
ro

un
d 

G
ro

ve
 

V
al

e 
as

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 r
ef

er
en

ce
d 

on
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 w

eb
si

te
. W

e 
be

lie
ve

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

, i
f i

m
pl

em
en

te
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
tr

im
en

ta
l t

o 
th

e 
lo

ca
l e

co
no

m
y 

an
d 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

s 
a 

w
ho

le
. 

87
4

P
et

iti
on

 s
ig

ne
d 

by
 r

es
id

en
t i

n 
ro

ad
s 

ac
ro

ss
 a

 b
ro

ad
 a

re
a 

in
 D

ul
w

ic
h,

 
so

m
e 

of
 th

e 
st

re
et

 in
cl

ud
e:

 A
sh

bo
ur

ne
 G

ro
ve

, B
ar

ry
 R

oa
d,

 
C

op
le

st
on

 R
oa

d,
 C

ry
st

al
 P

al
ac

e 
R

oa
d,

 G
le

ng
ar

ry
 R

oa
d,

 H
er

ne
 H

ill
, 

Lo
rd

sh
ip

 L
an

e,
  M

ar
sd

en
 R

oa
d,

 M
el

bo
ur

ne
 G

ro
ve

, N
ut

br
oo

k 
S

tr
ee

t, 
O

gl
an

de
r 

R
oa

d,
 P

ec
kh

am
 R

ye
, S

t F
ra

nc
is

 R
oa

d,
 U

pl
an

d 
R

oa
d,

 
Z

en
or

ia
 S

tr
ee

t, 
  

00
6

P
et

iti
on

S
ou

th
S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
B

us
in

es
s

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n

14
/1

1/
11

B
u

si
n

es
se

s 
W

e 
th

e 
un

de
rs

ig
ne

d,
 o

bj
ec

t t
o 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
pr

op
os

ed
 

in
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 a

 C
on

tr
ol

le
d 

P
ar

ki
ng

 Z
on

e 
in

 a
nd

 a
ro

un
d 

G
ro

ve
 

V
al

e 
as

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 r
ef

er
en

ce
d 

on
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 w

eb
si

te
. W

e 
be

lie
ve

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

, i
f i

m
pl

em
en

te
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
tr

im
en

ta
l t

o 
th

e 
lo

ca
l e

co
no

m
y 

an
d 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

s 
a 

w
ho

le
. 

31
1

S
ig

ne
d 

by
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
in

 L
or

ds
hi

p 
La

ne
 fr

om
 th

e 
P

el
la

tt 
R

oa
d 

to
 th

e 
R

ou
nd

ab
ou

t, 
P

el
la

t R
oa

d 
(2

 s
ho

ps
),

 G
ro

ve
 V

al
e 

fr
om

 th
e 

ro
un

da
bo

ut
 to

 D
og

 K
en

ne
l H

ill
, D

og
 K

en
ne

l H
ill

 -
 2

 s
ho

ps
 b

ef
or

e 
S

ai
ns

bu
ry

s,
 M

el
bo

ur
ne

 G
ro

ve
, E

as
t D

ul
w

ic
h 

G
ro

ve
, E

as
t D

ul
w

ic
h 

R
oa

d,
 N

or
th

 C
ro

ss
 R

oa
d,

 U
pl

an
d 

R
oa

d,
 B

ar
ry

 R
oa

d 
(J

us
t t

he
 tw

o 
sh

op
s 

at
 th

e 
ju

nc
tio

n 
of

 U
pl

an
d 

R
oa

d)
 

00
7

P
et

iti
on

14
/1

1/
11

G
ro

ve
 V

al
e/

E
as

t 
D

u
lw

ic
h

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 C

o
n

tr
o

lle
d

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 Z

o
n

e 
– 

O
ct

o
b

er
 2

01
1 

W
e 

th
e 

un
de

rs
ig

ne
d 

ar
e 

op
po

se
d 

to
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
zo

ne
 a

s 
de

ta
ile

d 
in

 th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

do
cu

m
en

t 

15
S

ig
ne

d 
by

 r
es

id
en

ts
 o

f H
in

ck
le

y 
R

oa
d,

 K
es

to
n 

R
oa

d 
an

d 
O

gl
an

de
r 

R
oa

d

00
8

P
et

iti
on

14
/1

1/
11

W
e 

th
e 

un
de

rs
ig

ne
d 

re
si

de
nt

 o
f E

as
t D

ul
w

ic
h 

op
po

se
 th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
C

on
tr

ol
le

d 
P

ar
ki

ng
 Z

on
e 

in
 E

as
t 

D
ul

w
ic

h 

38
1

P
et

iti
on

 s
ig

ne
d 

by
 r

es
id

en
t i

n 
ro

ad
s 

ac
ro

ss
 a

 b
ro

ad
 a

re
a 

in
 D

ul
w

ic
h,

 
so

m
e 

of
 th

e 
st

re
et

 in
cl

ud
e:

 B
ar

ry
 R

oa
d,

 C
op

le
st

on
 R

oa
d,

 E
as

t 
D

ul
w

ic
h 

G
ro

ve
,  

G
le

ng
ar

ry
 R

oa
d,

 G
ro

ve
 V

al
e,

 M
el

bo
ur

ne
 G

ro
ve

, 
M

us
ch

am
p 

R
oa

d 
O

gl
an

de
r 

R
oa

d,
 T

ar
be

rt
 R

oa
d,

 T
el

l G
ro

ve
, 

T
ro

ss
ac

hs
 R

oa
d 

00
9

P
et

ito
n 

/ 
In

fo
rm

al
pa

rk
in

g
su

rv
ey

 

S
ub

m
itt

ed
by

 r
es

id
en

t 
of

 T
ro

ss
ac

hs
 

R
oa

d
14

/1
1/

11
C

P
Z

 P
et

it
io

n
: 

L
o

ca
l f

ee
lin

g
 in

 E
D

 r
e 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 C
P

Z
 a

ro
u

n
d

 
E

D
 s

ta
ti

o
n

. N
o

v 
20

11
 

A
re

 y
ou

 fo
r 

or
 a

ga
in

st
 c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
on

 s
tr

ee
t n

ea
r 

E
D

 
st

at
io

n?
If 

co
nt

ro
lle

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
w

er
e 

to
 h

ap
pe

n 
w

ou
ld

 y
ou

 w
an

t i
t t

o 
op

er
at

e 
m

on
-f

ri 
8.

30
-6

.3
0 

or
 1

0-
12

? 
If 

co
nt

ro
lle

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
di

d 
ha

pp
en

 in
 a

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
in

g 
st

re
et

 to
 w

he
re

 
yo

u 
liv

e 
w

ou
ld

 y
ou

 c
ha

ng
e 

yo
ur

 m
in

d 

14
8

P
et

iti
on

 s
ig

ne
d 

by
 r

es
id

en
t i

n 
ro

ad
s 

ac
ro

ss
 a

 b
ro

ad
 a

re
a 

in
 D

ul
w

ic
h,

 
so

m
e 

of
 th

e 
st

re
et

 in
cl

ud
e:

 A
sh

bo
ur

ne
 G

ro
ve

, C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 G
ro

ve
, 

H
ill

sb
or

o 
R

oa
d,

 M
el

bo
ur

ne
 G

ro
ve

 L
or

ds
hi

p 
La

ne
, T

ar
be

rt
 R

oa
d,

 
T

ho
rn

co
m

be
 R

oa
d,

 T
ro

ss
ac

hs
 R

oa
d.

 

8 
re

si
de

nt
s 

tic
ke

d 
10

-1
2 

as
 th

ei
r 

pr
ef

er
re

d 
op

tio
n 

76
 r

es
id

en
t i

nd
ic

at
ed

 th
ey

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 c

ha
ng

e 
th

ei
r 

m
in

d 
a 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rin
g 

st
re

et
 w

er
e 

to
 b

ec
om

e 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

pa
rk

in
g.

  
T

O
T

A
L

 
29

18
26

F
ig

u
re

 1
6

51



- 33 - 

Section D – Parking stress survey summary 

This section provides a summary of the parking survey conducted on a weekday (Thursday 10 February 
2011) and a weekend (Saturday 12 and Sunday 13 February 2011).   

The beat survey was carried out at every hour from 0600 to 2100. No major public events, school 
holidays or transport problems were reported on these dates. Full details of the results are set out in 
appendix 8.  The average weekday parking occupancy is mapped in figure 17. 

The parking beat data was collected on a space by space basis with the exact location, any vehicle 
permit types shown, the vehicle type and the parking restriction type (if any) for each being recorded.  
Each space was 5.0 meters long was given a unique reference number.  

The whole survey area was surveyed between 0600 and 2100 with a 30 minute frequency.  The first 
beat in reality starts at 0500 and the last finished at 2200.  

The surveys results display occupancy compared to capacity, length of vehicle stay and parking demand 
type for each street. 

Headline results 
1) Eight roads demonstrated a very high (>80%) average occupancy on the weekday survey. The 

average occupancy across the study area was 73%. Eight roads during the day, showed over 
saturation (>100%) at some point on the weekday survey indicating parking was occurring in 
unsafe locations (on road junctions or yellow lines) or in obstructive locations (across dropped 
kerbs or double parking). 

2) The highest level of occupancy (134%) was recorded at 0830 in Elsie Road. 

3) The lowest level of occupancy (0%) was recorded in Hayes Grove. 

4) Between 0730-1830 there was an average of 20% “commuters” or “non residents” vehicles 
parked in the study area.  

5) The highest number of “commuter” vehicles were parked in St Francis Road (21, 38% of all cars 
parked), Melbourne Grove (16, 21%) Derwent Grove (15, 20%), Elsie Road (11, 22%), and 
Ondine Road (10, 9%). 

6) Over the 3 days the survey revealed that there was an average of 475 resident vehicles parked in 
the study area at 0600. This gives us an indication of the number of resident vehicles in the study 
area.

7) At the weekend average occupancy was lower and fell to to 68% (Saturday) and 63% (Sunday). 

Please note: There was a data capture error in Zenoria Street on the Sunday survey. The title ‘Oglander Road (Copleston Road)’ applies to 

Copleston Road only. Vale End results include that area named on-street as Hayes Grove. Hayes Grove in the survey results only applies to 

that area between Oglander and the “Y” junction of Hayes Grove.  East Dulwich Road survey only identifies 29 safe parking spaces, which the 

council disagrees with.  It would appear that the surveyors counted only 29 spaces in the street and surveyed those same 29 spaces as the 

actually occupancy/duration results are not dissimilar as to that which we would expect.  

52



- 34 - 

Parking occupancy map  

The average weekday parking occupancy in the Grove Vale study area 

Figure 17 

53



Section E – Grove Vale CPZ parking demand and initial design 

This section compares the existing parking demand compared to the CPZ initial design. 

Parking demand 

We have determined that there are approximately 475 resident vehicles in the study area. This is an 
average of vehicles parked at 6.00am over the 3 parking occupancy survey dates. Vehicles parked at 
6.00am are classified as resident for the purposes of the survey. For example, on each of the three 
survey days, 62 vehicles were parked in Derwent Grove at 6.00am. 

The Office of National Statistic’s s Publications Hub provides a variety of UK datasets. It allows users to 
define their own regions (rather than political boundaries) for analysis purposes. We have attempted to 
do this for the Grove Vale study area in relation to Key Statistic (KS17) which provides 2001 Census 
data on the number of private cars or vans owned. User defined regions are limited by post code 
boundaries so we cannot provide an accurate ONS figure for the area, as the defined region includes 
some streets not in the consultation area, such as Everthorpe Road and Oglander Road and excludes 
part of Ondine Road. However, taking into account the limitations the ONS figure for KS17 the 
approximate GV study area shows 635 private cars and vans owned. 

An alternative method to the census is use of Driver and Vehicle Licensing Agency (DVLA) data (figure 
X). This, however, cannot be refined beyond a ward level.  The DVLA figures show 3260 (licensed at 
end of 2010) cars registered in East Dulwich and 2577 in South Camberwell. 

DVLA registered vehicles (2001 to 2010)

2000

2200

2400

2600

2800

3000

3200

3400

3600

Licensed
at end of

2001

Licensed
at end of

2002

Licensed
at end of

2003

Licensed
at end of

2004

Licensed
at end of

2005

Licensed
at end of

2006

Licensed
at end of

2007

Licensed
at end of

2008

Licensed
at end of

2009

Licensed
at end of

2010

East Dulwich

South Camberwell

Southwark average

When considering the DVLA and Census figures it must be borne in mind that the census is self 
reporting (people may say they have access to a car when the vehicle may be registered at an address 
outside the borough or unregistered) while car ownership data (DVLA) is for those registered within the 
area (in the above case by ward).  It should be noted that the census data is 10 years old. 

- 35 - 

54



- 36 - 

Our parking surveys identified that there were 100 commuters and 27 non residents parking in the study 
area on a weekday. These are the total of number commuters / non residents parked at 11am during the 
weekday survey. We chose the 11am figures as this would be during the proposed 2 hour controlled 
period.

Initial CPZ design 

There are a variety of methods to quantifying how many spaces a CPZ will create. This is because 
vehicle lengths vary in size (eg a Mini is ~3.3m and a Mondeo ~4.8m).  Furthermore, the council do not 
paint the parking bays into individual spaces, rather they will be long parking places holding as many 
vehicles as the motorists can choose to fit. We consider long, undesignated parking places to be the 
most efficient use of allocated parking space. 

Generally, it is practice to sum the length of parking bays and divide by a nominal length, the parking 
industry often10 uses 5.0m (5.0 was the value used in this report’s parking occupancy survey).  However 
this method does have limitations, particularly that the sum of two entirely separate parking bays each of 
8m would give a total parking supply of 16m, dividing this by 5m would suggest there was room for 3 
cars.  However, in reality, a single 8m bay will usually only hold one car. This lower capacity figure is, of 
course, dependant upon vehicle size and the motorist’s ability or decision of how to park. Therefore, in 
this example the real-world situation would be a supply of 2 and not 3 as the sum / nominal value would 
have suggested.

An exercise has therefore been carried out that provides a comparison between the existing number of 
spaces within the GV consultation area and the number that have been proposed as available for permit 
holders within the initial CPZ design distributed for public consultation.  

The values shown in figure 18 provide the net loss/gain of parking on a street-by-street basis and a 
summary of reason for that change. This is mapped in Appendix 9. 

The calculations used provide a ‘real-world’ set of values (discussed above) instead of the more 
arithmetic approach used, where the proposed bay lengths were divided by 5.0, irrespective of the 
number of cars you could actually fit in each bay.  Both methods are robust and useful but do provide 
slightly different results. 

10 Eg. London Parking Supply Study, MVA for TFL, 2005 

55



- 37 - 

ROAD EXISTING 
NUMBER OF 
SPACES 
AVAILABLE (PRE 
CPZ) (5M SPACE) 

PROPOSED 
NUMBER OF SPACES 
AVAILABLE FOR 
PERMIT HOLDERS  
(POST CPZ) (5M 
SPACE) 

CHANGE IN 
PARKING 
SPACE 

REASON FOR LOSS / GAIN IN 
PARKING SPACES 

DERWENT GROVE 70 68 -2
Due to providing a time restricted free 
bay at the Grove Vale Junction 

EAST DULWICH RD. 42 42 - No change 

ELSIE ROAD 54 55 +1 Additional space created 

GROVE VALE 0 9 +9
New spaces created as part of the 
Grove Vale project 

JARVIS RD 7 7 - No change 

MELBOURNE GROVE 35 37 +2 x2 spaces created outside 17/19 

COPLESTON ROAD 48 48 - No change 

ONDINE RD. 102 100 -1
Due to providing time restricted free bay 
at the Grove Vale junction 

OXONIAN STREET 19 18 -1 Installation of DYL on 90 degree bend 

ST.FRANCIS RD 51 44 -7

Due to installation of DYL in turning 
circle area and providing time restricted 
free bays at the Grove Vale junction 

TINTAGEL CRESCENT 47 44 -3
Due to providing a time restricted free 
bay at the Lordship Lane Junction 

ZENORIA STREET 23 21 -2 Due to the extension of the loading bay 

TOTAL 498 493 -5

Figure 18 

Conclusion (parking demand v initial design) 

The 06.00 survey identifies that there are approximately 475 resident vehicles in the study area.  

This figure can fall by 20% during the day (when the CPZ would be operational) with resident vehicles 
departing from the area to be replaced by others and thus maintaining, at present, relatively even levels 
of occupancy. 

The survey identified that during the week 100 commuters (parked for >6 hours) and 27 non residents 
(parked for 3-6 hours) are parked in the study area on a weekday. 

Although the surveys are only a snapshot of the parking activity, this indicates that currently during the 
day the parking can potentially be overcapacity in the study area but that the proposed supply of spaces 
for residents would be greater than the total number of residents wanting to park. 

As shown in Figure 18 above, the initial design provides for 493 spaces that permit holders could park in 
during CPZ hours. It should be noted that 493 increases by 38 spaces after the controlled hours finish. 
The would provide extra space for residents (or anyone to park) in the short term parking bays (Derwent 
Grove, Grove Vale, Melbourne Grove, Ondine Road, St Francis Road, Tintagel Crescent, Vale End and 
Zenoria Street) and on single yellow lines (Melbourne Grove and Grove Vale).  

56



- 38 - 

Section F – Study conclusions and recommendations 

Conclusions

Parking controls continue to provide varied and polarised opinion.  The perception on whether or not 
controls are required will depend on personal factors as well as the local conditions on-street. 

It should also be noted that self-selection bias may occur in a study where potential respondents have 
control over whether they participate.  

Typically when respondents are volunteers, people with strong opinions or substantial knowledge are 
more likely to reply, potentially making the sample non-representative of the general population. As the 
public response to a consultation is through self-administered surveys, there is no control over those 
who choose to fill out the questionnaire. 

Inferential statistical methods rest on the assumption that the results from a small sample can be 
generalised to the population from which it was drawn. As feedback received tends to be a non-
probabilistic sample, the statistical significance of our results (either in favour or against the proposals) 
has not been, nor should it be, extrapolated across all stakeholders. We can only be certain that the 
consultation feedback received is representative of those who chose to respond. 

Consideration has been given to those views expressed by alternative methods to the questionnaire and 
also to views expressed via the questionnaire received from people outside the study area.  Whilst they 
have not been added to the results for reasons discussed on page (28) it was important to check that 
there was no significant contrast of opinion between questionnaire responses and emailed comments.   

Consultation results show a clear correlation between support for the CPZ and perceived easy/difficulty 
in parking.   Those supporting the introduction of a CPZ report difficulty parking in their street, 79% of 
CPZ supporters said that they found parking difficult ( 4 on scale of 1(easy) to 5(difficult). The converse 
is equally true and those against the introduction of a CPZ who reported little difficulty parking in their 
street. 62% of those against the CPZ found parking easy ( 2 on scale of 1(easy) to 5(difficult). 

Each individual response was mapped in GIS which provided opportunity to look for patterns beyond that 
displayed on a street level. 

The results from the consultation show that, overall, there is no clear majority in favour of parking 
controls across the entire consultation area.  There are some streets in favour that merit further 
consideration, for example, Derwent Grove and Tintagel Crescent.   Zenoria Road and East Dulwich 
Road both responded that they would “change their mind” if a CPZ was introduced in an adjacent street. 

There is also a grouping of support, as a smaller zone, in the area bounded by Grove Vale and East 
Dulwich Grove. 

A range of possible options are outlined in Figure 19. 

57



- 39 - 

Further conclusions on a street-by-street basis, based upon the initial design 

Street Highlight of issues raised and officer observations 
Adys Road 
(part) 

The initial design had no changes proposed for this road 
The road is included in this analysis as two corner properties (flank walls in Ondine 
Road) were consulted 
These properties are within the initial zone boundary and would be entitled to permits 

Besant Place Public highway and private road ownership varies in this street 
Some properties have off-street (private) car parks. There is also a (private) permit 
scheme in operation on the private stretch of this road to protect residents interests 
Some frontages lead onto the public highway where parking bays were proposed 
wherever safe 

Copleston Road 
(part) 

Clear majority against CPZ 
Review of existing disabled bays required 

Derwent Grove Majority of residents in favour of CPZ. 
No off-street parking 
There is particularly strong support for controls from residents closer to Grove Vale 

Dog Kennel Hill 
(part) 

No response from 3 properties consulted 
Existing restrictions prevent parking 24/7 

East Dulwich Grove 
(part) 

The northern side of this road was included within the consultation 
Existing restrictions prevent parking 24/7 
Residents with vehicles are therefore likely to park in side roads, within and outside of 
the initial zone boundary 

East Dulwich Road 
(part) 

Majority against a CPZ 
A majority of those who responded ‘no’ or ‘undecided’ to wanting a CPZ would, in fact, 
change their mind if a CPZ was introduced in a neighboring street 
Parking is already formalised, following changes implemented to ensure Fire Brigade 
access.  
Concerns raised about how the parking arrangements reduced parking capacity 

Elsie Road Mixed views on CPZ 
Many properties have off-street parking 
Majority of residents supported bays in front of driveways 
Road is sandwiched between two streets that support the CPZ 
No majority to indicate they would change their mind if introduced on an adjacent road 
Needs double yellow lines at junction with Tintagel Crescent 

Grove Vale Existing restrictions prevent parking during peak hours, with stretches 24/7. 
Frontages include numerous shops, cafés, a PH and a library 
Existing provision of short-stay visitor parking 

Hayes Grove Public highway and private road ownership varies in this street 
Some properties have off-street (private) car parks. There is also a (private) permit 
scheme in operation on the private stretch of this road to protect residents interests 
Some frontages lead onto the public highway where parking bays were proposed 
wherever safe 

Jarvis Road  No response from 3 properties consulted 
There are two existing doctors bays that are not signed and create ambiguity about 
whether parking is permitted or not 

Lordship Lane 
(part) 

The initial design had no changes proposed for this road 
Only a small section of Lordship Lane was consulted, the properties between Zenoria 
Street and East Dulwich Grove 
These properties are within the initial zone boundary and would be entitled to permits 

Melbourne Grove 
(part) 

Analysis show that a majority of residents in the section Melbourne Grove support 
parking controls. 
Businesses in the street have existing 30min and 3hr parking bays to prioritise space for 
customers.  
Businesses raised concern about staff parking but recognised high demand for parking 
space and that their staff regularly had to park further away 
Opportunity to provide additional short-stay and destination disabled parking. 
Majority of residents do not support bays in front of driveways 

58



- 40 - 

Street Highlight of issues raised and officer observations 
Oglander Road The initial design had no changes proposed for this road 

The road is included in this analysis as one corner properties (flank walls of Copleston 
Road) was consulted 
This property was within the initial zone boundary and would be entitled to permits 

Ondine Road Clear majority against CPZ 
Where there is support, this is nearer to Grove Vale. 

Oxonian Street Majority of residents against CPZ. 
Oxonian Street and Zenoria Street are connected and, for the purposes of any CPZ, 
should be considered as one. 
Needs double yellow lines at 900 bend with Zenoria Street as route restricted. 

Railway Rise The initial design had no changes proposed for this road 
This road is not public highway therefore a CPZ would not apply  

St Francis Road Majority of resident against CPZ 
Analysis show those in favour are closer to the junction with Grove Vale / Dog Kennel Hill
Opportunity to provide short stay parking bays for adjacent businesses 

Tintagel Crescent Majority of residents in favour of CPZ 
No off-street parking 
Analysis of the comments section of the questionnaire identifies that there is a particular 
problem during the school drop off/pick up time 
Needs double yellow lines at junction with Elsie Road 

Tintagel Gardens The initial design had no changes proposed for this road as it is not public highway 
Residents are likely to park in Oxonian Street or Zenoria Street. 

Vale End Some properties have off-street (private) car parks. There is also a (private) permit 
scheme in operation on the private stretch of this road to protect residents interests 
Opportunity to provide short stay parking bay for adjacent businesses 

Zenoria Street Majority against a CPZ 
A majority of those who responded ‘no’ or ‘undecided’ to wanting a CPZ would, in fact, 
change their mind if a CPZ was introduced in a neighboring street 
Zenoria Street and Oxonian Street are connected and, for the purposes of any CPZ, 
should be considered as one. 
Needs double yellow lines at 900 bend with Oxonian Street as route restricted 
Significant congestion at junction with Lordship Lane 
Existing parking restrictions (loading/free) ambiguous and should be clarified 

59



- 
41

 -
 

G
ro

ve
 V

al
e 

st
u

d
y 

ar
ea

 o
p

ti
o

n
s 

O
p

ti
o

n
 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
R

at
io

n
al

e 
R

is
ks

B
en

ef
it

s
1

N
ot

 to
 p

ro
ce

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 a
 C

P
Z

 
in

 a
ny

 o
f t

he
 G

ro
ve

 V
al

e 
st

ud
y 

ar
ea

 
 

O
ve

ra
ll 

m
aj

or
ity

 a
ga

in
st

 p
ar

ki
ng

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
in

 th
e 

st
ud

y 
ar

ea
 

 
P

et
iti

on
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 in
di

ca
te

 th
at

 th
e 

w
id

er
 c

om
m

un
ity

 d
oe

sn
’t 

w
an

t c
on

tr
ol

s 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 n

ot
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
di

ffi
cu

lti
es

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 
ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

 (
an

d 
sh

ow
n)

 in
 

so
m

e 
st

re
et

s 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 w
ill

 
no

t r
es

po
nd

 to
 th

os
e 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

ho
 to

ok
 p

ar
t i

n 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
su

pp
or

te
d 

th
e 

sc
he

m
e.

 

Is
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

ov
er

al
l 

re
sp

on
se

 fr
om

 th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n.

Is
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 o
f 

vi
ew

s 
in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 
by

 th
e 

w
id

er
 c

om
m

un
ity

. 

2
N

ot
 to

 p
ro

ce
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 a

 C
P

Z
 

in
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

 G
ro

ve
 V

al
e 

st
ud

y 
ar

ea
 b

ut
 

ca
rr

y 
ou

t m
in

or
 c

ha
ng

es
, e

g:
  

 
M

in
im

is
e 

re
st

ric
tio

ns
, d

ec
lu

tte
r 

an
d 

re
fr

es
h 

ex
is

tin
g 

si
gn

s 
w

he
re

ve
r 

po
ss

ib
le

 
 

In
st

al
l y

el
lo

w
 li

ne
s 

on
 u

nr
es

tr
ic

te
d 

ju
nc

tio
ns

 w
he

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 a
bs

en
t 

 
R

em
ov

e 
un

us
ed

 d
oc

to
rs

 b
ay

s 
in

 J
ar

vi
s 

R
oa

d 
&

 m
ot

or
cy

cl
e 

ba
y 

in
 D

er
w

en
t 

G
ro

ve
 

In
st

al
l x

2 
de

st
in

at
io

n 
di

sa
bl

ed
 b

ay
s 

in
 

M
el

bo
ur

ne
 G

ro
ve

 a
nd

 e
xt

en
d 

th
e 

tim
e 

re
st

ric
te

d 
fr

ee
 b

ay
  

 
O

ve
ra

ll 
m

aj
or

ity
 a

ga
in

st
 p

ar
ki

ng
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

in
 th

e 
st

ud
y 

ar
ea

 
 

P
et

iti
on

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 in

di
ca

te
 th

at
 th

e 
w

id
er

 c
om

m
un

ity
 d

oe
sn

’t 
w

an
t c

on
tr

ol
s 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 h
ig

h 
pa

rk
in

g 
de

m
an

d 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 o
bs

tr
uc

tiv
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

in
 s

om
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 
 

O
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 to
 c

re
at

e 
m

or
e 

sp
ac

es
 w

he
re

 p
ar

ki
ng

 d
em

an
d 

is
 

hi
gh

. 
 

Im
pr

ov
e 

le
gi

bi
lit

y 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

 to
 m

ot
or

is
ts

 

In
st

al
lin

g 
do

ub
le

 y
el

lo
w

 li
ne

s 
on

 
ju

nc
tio

ns
 c

ou
ld

 d
is

pl
ac

e 
so

m
e 

ve
hi

cl
es

 (
ie

 fu
rt

he
r 

in
cr

ea
se

 
pa

rk
in

g 
pr

es
su

re
) 

 

V
eh

ic
le

 a
cc

es
s 

w
ill

 im
pr

ov
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 F

ire
 B

rig
ad

e 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 p

ub
lic

 r
ea

lm
 

C
la

rit
y 

of
 r

es
tr

ic
tio

ns
 to

 m
ot

or
is

ts
 

3
T

o 
in

tr
od

uc
e 

a 
on

e 
ho

ur
 C

P
Z

 o
n 

an
 

ex
pe

rim
en

ta
l b

as
is

 in
 D

er
w

en
t G

ro
ve

 o
nl

y 
 

A
 m

aj
or

ity
 6

1%
 o

f r
es

id
en

ts
 in

 fa
vo

ur
 o

f a
 C

P
Z

 in
 D

er
w

en
t 

G
ro

ve
 

A
 p

et
iti

on
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

in
 s

up
po

rt
  o

f a
 C

P
Z

 fr
om

 r
es

id
en

t i
n 

D
er

w
en

t G
ro

ve
 

 
8 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t C

P
Z

 r
eq

ue
st

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 fr

om
 D

er
w

en
t G

ro
ve

 
 

A
 c

le
ar

 c
lu

st
er

 o
f s

up
po

rt
 fo

r 
co

nt
ro

ls
 in

 th
e 

no
rt

he
rn

 s
ec

tio
n 

of
 D

er
w

en
t G

ro
ve

 
 

M
aj

or
ity

 o
f r

es
id

en
t i

nd
ic

at
ed

 th
at

 p
ar

ki
ng

 is
 a

 p
ro

bl
em

 
M

on
da

y 
– 

F
rid

ay
, d

ay
tim

e.
 

 
P

ar
ki

ng
 s

ur
ve

ys
 r

ev
ea

le
d 

th
at

 th
er

e 
w

er
e 

16
 c

om
m

ut
er

 
ve

hi
cl

es
 p

ar
ke

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

w
ee

kd
ay

 s
ur

ve
y 

T
he

 s
ch

em
e 

m
ay

 c
au

se
 

di
sp

la
ce

m
en

t t
o 

ro
ad

s 
on

 th
e 

pe
rip

he
ry

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ar
ea

 
w

hi
ch

 c
ou

ld
 tr

ig
ge

r 
th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
fu

rt
he

r 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
fu

nd
in

g.
 

T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ne
ve

r 
in

st
al

le
d 

an
 is

ol
at

ed
 o

ne
-s

tr
ee

t C
P

Z
 

be
fo

re
. T

hi
s 

co
ul

d 
se

t a
 d

iff
ic

ul
t 

pr
ec

ed
en

t i
n 

ot
he

r 
pa

rt
s 

of
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h.
  

W
ill

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
in

 D
er

w
en

t G
ro

ve
. 

S
up

po
rt

s 
th

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 o

f t
ho

se
 

re
sp

on
di

ng
 to

 th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

in
 

D
er

w
en

t G
ro

ve
. 

F
ig

u
re

 1
9 

60



- 
42

 -
 

O
p

ti
o

n
 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
R

at
io

n
al

e 
R

is
ks

B
en

ef
it

s
4

T
o 

in
tr

od
uc

e 
a 

on
e 

ho
ur

 C
P

Z
 o

n 
an

 
ex

pe
rim

en
ta

l b
as

is
 in

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
st

re
et

s 
on

ly
: D

er
w

en
t G

ro
ve

, E
ls

ie
 R

oa
d,

 J
ar

vi
s 

R
oa

d,
 M

el
bo

ur
ne

 G
ro

ve
, O

xo
ni

an
 S

tr
ee

t, 
T

in
ta

ge
l C

re
sc

en
t a

nd
 Z

en
or

ia
 S

tr
ee

t. 

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

to
 th

e 
qu

es
tio

n 
“D

o 
yo

u 
ag

re
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 
in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 a
 c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
zo

ne
 in

 y
ou

r 
st

re
et

?”
: 

 
49

%
 s

up
po

rt
s 

pa
rk

in
g 

co
nt

ro
ls

 in
 th

es
e 

st
re

et
s 

an
d 

45
%

 d
o 

no
t. 

6%
 w

er
e 

un
de

ci
de

d.
 T

he
re

fo
re

 o
f t

ho
se

 w
ho

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 

a 
de

fin
ite

 v
ie

w
, a

 m
aj

or
ity

 w
er

e 
in

 fa
vo

ur
 

 
C

le
ar

 m
aj

or
ity

 in
 fa

vo
ur

 in
 D

er
w

en
t G

ro
ve

 a
nd

 T
in

ta
ge

l 
C

re
sc

en
t

 
M

el
bo

ur
ne

 G
ro

ve
, w

he
n 

an
al

ys
in

g 
th

e 
re

sp
on

se
s 

th
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 o
f r

es
id

en
ts

 in
 M

el
bo

ur
ne

 G
ro

ve
, s

up
po

rt
 a

 C
P

Z
. 

T
hr

ee
 r

ep
lie

s 
fr

om
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
do

 n
ot

 s
up

po
rt

 
 

77
 c

om
m

ut
er

 / 
no

n 
re

si
de

nt
s,

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
in

 th
es

e 
st

re
et

 a
t 1

1.
00

am
 o

n 
th

e 
w

ee
kd

ay
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

ur
ve

y 

T
he

 s
ch

em
e 

m
ay

 c
au

se
 

di
sp

la
ce

m
en

t t
o 

ro
ad

s 
on

 th
e 

pe
rip

he
ry

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ar
ea

 
w

hi
ch

 c
ou

ld
 tr

ig
ge

r 
th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
fu

rt
he

r 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
fu

nd
in

g.
 

W
ill

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
in

 th
es

e 
st

re
et

s.
 

P
ro

vi
de

s 
a 

lo
gi

ca
l C

P
Z

 
bo

un
da

ry
. 

C
an

 b
e 

m
on

ito
re

d 
ov

er
 a

n 
18

 
m

on
th

 tr
ia

l p
er

io
d.

 C
an

 b
e 

re
m

ov
ed

 if
 u

ns
uc

ce
ss

fu
l. 

A
 1

 h
ou

r 
C

P
Z

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
su

ffi
ci

en
t 

tim
e 

fo
r 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t p

ur
po

se
s 

w
ith

in
 th

is
 s

m
al

l g
ro

up
 o

f s
tr

ee
ts

 

B
us

in
es

se
s 

al
re

ad
y 

ha
ve

 s
pa

ce
 

pr
io

rit
is

ed
 fo

r 
th

ei
r 

cu
st

om
er

s 
an

d 
ad

di
tio

na
l s

pa
ce

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
cr

ea
te

d.

5
T

o 
in

tr
od

uc
e 

a 
on

e 
ho

ur
 C

P
Z

 o
n 

an
 

ex
pe

rim
en

ta
l b

as
is

 in
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

st
re

et
s 

on
ly

: D
er

w
en

t G
ro

ve
, E

ls
ie

 R
oa

d 
an

d 
T

in
ta

ge
l C

re
sc

en
t 

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

to
 th

e 
qu

es
tio

n 
“D

o 
yo

u 
ag

re
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 
in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 a
 c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
zo

ne
 in

 y
ou

r 
st

re
et

?”
: 

 
53

%
 s

up
po

rt
s 

pa
rk

in
g 

co
nt

ro
ls

 in
 th

es
e 

st
re

et
s 

an
d 

41
%

 d
o 

no
t. 

6%
 w

er
e 

un
de

ci
de

d.
 T

he
re

fo
re

 a
 m

aj
or

ity
 in

 fa
vo

ur
 o

f a
 

C
P

Z
 in

 th
es

e 
st

re
et

s 
 

It 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 to

 c
on

si
de

r 
T

in
ta

ge
l C

re
sc

en
t a

nd
 

E
ls

ie
 R

oa
d 

to
ge

th
er

 d
ue

 to
 th

ei
r 

ph
ys

ic
al

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

T
he

 s
ch

em
e 

m
ay

 c
au

se
 

di
sp

la
ce

m
en

t t
o 

ro
ad

s 
on

 th
e 

pe
rip

he
ry

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ar
ea

 
w

hi
ch

 c
ou

ld
 tr

ig
ge

r 
th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
fu

rt
he

r 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
fu

nd
in

g.
 

E
ls

ie
 R

oa
d 

re
sp

on
de

d 
‘n

o’
 to

 th
e 

qu
es

tio
n 

“w
ou

ld
 y

ou
 c

ha
ng

e 
yo

ur
 

m
in

d 
if 

a 
C

P
Z

 w
as

 in
tr

od
uc

ed
 in

 
a 

st
re

et
 n

ex
t t

o 
yo

ur
s?

 

W
ill

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
in

 th
es

e 
st

re
et

s.
 

W
ou

ld
 m

ea
n 

th
at

 E
ls

ie
 R

oa
d 

is
 

no
t ‘

sa
nd

w
ic

he
d’

 b
et

w
ee

n 
tw

o 
st

re
et

s 
w

he
re

 th
er

e 
is

 s
up

po
rt

 fo
r 

a 
C

P
Z

. F
ig

u
re

 1
9 

61



- 43 - 

Recommendations

It is recommended that:  

1. The options outlined in the preceding section are discussed at both Camberwell and Dulwich community 

council in January 2012. 

2. That formal comment is sought from both community councils on those options. 

3. That a key decision IDM be prepared that summarises the content of this report and to include those 

comments received by both community councils, this will be a decision taken by the Cabinet Member for 

Environment, Transport and Recycling in February 2012.

62



List of figures 

Figure Title 
Figure 1 1st and 2nd stage CPZ process
Figure 2 and 2.1 Table and Graph – Grove Vale consultation response rate 
Figure 3 Graph –  (How may vehicles do you park on Street?) 
Figure 4 Graph – (The ability to find an on-street parking space) 
Figure 5 Graph – (What time of day have difficulty parking) 
Figure 6, 6.1 and 6.2 Graph – (Do you agree with the proposed introduction of a CPZ in your street?) 
Figure 7 and 7.1 Graph – (Would you change your mind if a CPZ was introduced in street next to yours? 
Figure 8 Graph – (What type of bay you think there should be more of?) 
Figure 9 Graph – (if parking controls were introduced, which controlled times would you prefer?) 
Figure 10 Map – Selection of Yes comments 
Figure 11 Map – Selection of No comments 
Figure 12 Table – Supplementary questionnaire responses 
Figure 13 and 13.1 Table and Graph - Consultation responses from outside the study area 
Figure 14 Table – Communication from outside the study area 
Figure 15 Table – Stakeholder comments 
Figure 16 Table – Summary of petitions 
Figure 17 Map – Vehicle occupancy 
Figure 18 Map – Pre and Post CPZ parking spaces 
Figure 19 Map – Recommendations 

List of appendices (contained in supplemental agenda pack) 

Appendix Title 
Appendix 1 Map of existing Southwark CPZs
Appendix 2 Existing controls within the Grove Vale study area 
Appendix 3 Grove Vale 1st and 2nd stage consultation document 
Appendix 4 Grove Vale consultation street notices locations 
Appendix 5 Grove Vale consultation street notice 
Appendix 6 Parking beat surveys (Summarised) 
Appendix 7 OS land use map 
Appendix 8 Parking beat surveys (Detailed) 
Appendix 9 Pre and post CPZ spaces 
Appendix 10 Consultation questionnaire responses – raw data 

Version control 

Version 1.0 Draft 

Author: Paul Gellard 

Checked by: Tim Walker 

Approved by: Matt Hill

63



 

 
 
 

  

 
Item No.  

14. 
 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
10 January 2012 

Meeting Name: 
Camberwell Community Council 
 

Report title: 
 

Local parking amendments   

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 
 

All wards within Camberwell Community Council 

From: 
 

Senior Engineer, Parking Design, Public Realm 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
1. It is recommended that the following local parking amendments, detailed in the 

appendices to this report, be approved for implementation subject to the outcome 
of any necessary statutory procedures: 

 
• Dagmar Road – Install one disabled persons (blue badge) parking bay 
 
• Marsden Road – Install one disabled persons (blue badge) parking bay 
 
• East Dulwich Road  -  Install one disabled persons (blue badge) parking 

bay 
 
• Grove Park / Pelham Close – Install ‘at any time’ waiting restrictions on the 

junction 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
2. This report presents proposals for a number of local parking amendments, which 

are reserved to the Community Council for decision under Part 3H of the 
constitution. 

 
3. The origins and reasons for the proposals are discussed in the main body of the 

report.  
 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
Origin disabled bays – Dagmar Road, Marsden Road and East Dulwich Road 
 
4. Three applications have been received by the network operations team for the 

installation of a disabled persons (blue badge) parking bay.   In each case, the 
applicant met the necessary criteria for an origin, disabled persons parking bay. 

 
5. The parking design team has subsequently carried out a site visit to evaluate the 

road network and carried out consultation with each applicant to ascertain the 
appropriate location for each disabled bay. 

 
6. It is therefore recommended that disabled bays be installed at the following 

locations, see appendices for detailed design:  
 
 
 

Agenda Item 14
64



 

 
 
 

  

 
Reference Bay location (approx) Drawing appendix number 
1112Q3007 Outside 32 Dagmar Road Appendix 1 
1112Q3020 Outside 31 Marsden Road Appendix 2 
1112Q3021 Opposite 76 East Dulwich Road Appendix 3 
 
Grove Park / Pelham Close – proposed ‘at any time’ waiting restrictions on the 
junction 
 
7. The parking design team received an email from Cllr Ward on 24 October 2011 

regarding parking at the Grove Park and Pelham Close junction. 
 
8. Cllr Ward contacted the parking design team on behalf of a constituent who raised 

concerns about cars parking on the Grove Park and Pelham Close junction making 
it very difficult for motorists to see oncoming traffic until half way across the road. 

 
9. The resident who raised concerns about this junction would like to see double 

yellow lines at the junction to improve vehicle access. 
 
Recommendation 
 
10. The parking design team has carried out a site inspection at this junction and 

proposes ‘at any time’ waiting restrictions are installed to ensure vehicular and 
pedestrian access and sight lines are maintained at all times (Appendix 4). 

 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
11. The recommendations contained within this report are consistent with the polices 

of the Parking Enforcement Plan and associated Local Implementation Plan (LIP) 
 
12. The proposal(s) will support the council’s equalities and human rights policies and 

will promote social inclusion by:  
 

• Providing improved access for emergency vehicles, refuge vehicles, residents 
and visitors 

• Improving sight lines for all road users  
• Improving junction and pedestrian safety, especially those with limited mobility 

or visual impairment; and 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT STATEMENT 
 
13. The recommendation contained within this report is consistent with the polices of 

the Parking Enforcement Plan and the Transport Plan 2011. 

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

14. All costs arising from implementing the proposals, as set out in the report, will be 
fully contained within the existing local parking amendment budget. 

 
CONSULTATION 
 
15. No informal (public) consultation has been carried out. Where consultation with 

stakeholders has been completed, this is described within the main body of the 
report. 

 

65



 

 
 
 

  

16. Should the community council approve the item(s), statutory consultation will take 
place as part of the making of the traffic management order.  A proposal notice will 
be erected in proximity to the site location and a press notice will be published in 
the Southwark News and London Gazette.  If there are objections a further report 
will be re-submitted to the community council for determination. 

 
17. The road network and parking manager has been consulted on the proposals and 

has no objections. 
 
18. No consultation or comment has been sought from the Strategic Director for 

Communities, Law and Governance or the Finance Director. 
 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 
Parking and Enforcement Plan Public Realm 

Environment and Leisure 
160 Tooley Street 

Tim Walker 
020 7525 2021 

 
 
APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 
Appendix 1 Proposed disabled bay outside 32 Dagmar Road 
Appendix 2 Proposed disabled bay outside 31 Marsden Road 
Appendix 3 Proposed disabled bay opposite 76 East Dulwich Road 
Appendix 4 Proposed ‘at any time’ restrictions on the Grove Park and Pelham 

Close junction 
 
 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 

Lead Officer Tim Walker, Senior Engineer 
Report Author Paul Gellard, Transport and Projects Officer 

Version Final 
Dated 21 December 2011   

Key Decision? No 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET MEMBER 

Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 
Strategic Director for Communities, Law 
and Governance 

No No 

Finance Director No No 
Parking operations and 
development manager 

No No 

Network manager No No 
Parking and network 
management business unit 
manager 

Yes No 

Cabinet Member  No No 
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 21 December 2011 
 

66



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

67



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

68



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

 
69



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

70



MEMBERS & EXTERNAL DISTRIBUTION LIST MUNICIPAL YEAR 2011-2012 
CAMBERWELL COMMUNITY COUNCIL 

Note: Original held by Constitutional Team (Community Councils) 
(Tel: 020 7525 7234) 

 
 Copies  Copies 

Members:    
Councillor Norma Gibbes (Chair)                                1 Shahida Nasim 1 
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle (Vice Chair)                     1 Audit Commission  
Councillor Kevin Ahern                                               1 Ground Floor  
Councillor Peter John                                                 1 Tooley Street  
Councillor Right Revd Emmanuel Oyewole                1   
Councillor Ian Wingfield                                              1   
Councillor Veronica Ward                                           1   
Councillor Mark Williams 
 

1 Borough Commander 1 

  Southwark Police   
  Southwark Police Station 

323 Borough High Street 
 

  London SE1 1JL  
    
Libraries (Camberwell) 2 Housing Offices  
Local History Library  1 Camberwell Area Housing Office                  1 
      
Press      
Southwark News 1     
South London Press 1   
    
    
Members of Parliament    
Harriet Harman M.P.                                               1   
Tessa Jowell M.P.                                              1   
    
Constitutional Officer (Community Councils) 
(at  CLG, Tooley Street – Second Floor – Hub 4) 
 

31   

    
  Total 49 
    
    
   

 
 
  

 


	Agenda
	
	Language  Needs

	5 Minutes from previous meeting
	11 Public Question Time
	Public Question Form

	12 Grove Vale First and Second Stage Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) Study
	Grove Vale CPZ - Appendix 1 Consultation

	14 Local Parking Amendments
	Appendix 1- Proposed disabled bay outside 32 Dagmar Road
	Appendix 2 - Proposed disabled bay outside 31 Marsden Road
	Appendix 3 - Proposed disabled bay opposite 76 East Dulwich Road
	Appendix 4 - Proposed ‚at any time™ restrictions on the Grove Park and Pelham Close junction

	

